i

=_||||=_MHANA

icroelectronics Public Company Limited
o0 .
v5m a1 lulasdanInsing e (W)

s189v1uUs:91U 2553
* . Annual Report 2010



Contents

49
20

aaruluseul
Group Financial Highlights

d1s91nUs:s1UunNsSsUN1S
Chairman’s Report 2010

wamsﬁ'uﬁumufnsér\)mu
Operation Review

ANU:NSSUNISUSEN

Board of Directors
ArU:WuSn1syauNduuSEnY
Management Team of Hana Group

lasvagvevdns
Hana Microelectronics Group Structure

ATU:NSSUMSIA:WUSHISUauUSEn

Directors and Management of Hana Microelectronics
dayarolu

Corporate Information

nannasrnfuguanomsiia

Corporate Governance

AOUSUIABBUKBadLAL
Corporate Social Responsibility

S1YVIUYIVANINSSUNISASIDdDULIA:ANUZNSSUNISASSNN
Audit Committee Report and Nomination Committee Report

Ar95uU1glla:dIAs:AvavigdnNs
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

S19VIUAIUSUTABAUYAVAMUZNSSUNISFHBSIEVIUNTVNISIDU
Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

s1gvUgaLIdaulryESuauryIn
Report of Independent Auditor

ounIsIdu
Financial Statements



r 'l"’M

DnlaUlUSauy
Group Financial Highlights
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2553 2552 2551  2010/2009

2010 2009 2008 % change
serlfis93 / Total Revenue 17,645 13,936 15,513 27%
selfannnnsang / Sales Revenue 16,958 13,458 15,106 26%
ﬁﬂa‘%uﬁu / Gross Profit 2,870 2,501 2,561 15%
A1lsa1nn1381L51NN3 / Operating Profit 2,473 1,848 1,856 0%
flsieuneniiiasng N AdeNs1AN LAZANFAS NG / EBITDA 3,612 2,853 2,818 27%
finlsqnaneausaniseanidu / Net Profit before Exceptional ltems 2,749 2,043 1,910 35%
finls (@evu) 4FuTl / Net Proft (Loss) for the year 2,749 2,043 1,910 35%
TANNINETRU / Total Assets 16,804 15,811 14,312 6%
NINETAUNN29-g73 / Net Fixed Assets 6,526 5,601 5,875 16%
iqwf@u / Total Liabilities 2,725 2,805 1,914 -3%
Aaue48Tiat / Shareholders Equity 14,079 13,006 12,397 8%
ARINAIURUARA mﬁm / Net (Cash) Debt / Equity -0.16 -0.25 -0.22
fnlsgnandsinnnisiasielfainnisang / Net Prof (after tax) % Sales 16% 15% 13% 7%
Arlsreunenidiadng n@ Adensean uazAndadsineseiae / EBITDA Margin 21% 21% 19% 0%
8n91MaLUNUETBMN / Return on Equity 20% 16% 15% 24%
Ruiluraanesiadis / Dividend per share (from the profits of) 1.55 1.40 1.20 1%
fnaRuiiunaane (lusausannsanidu) / Payout ratio (excl. exceptional items) 45% 55% 52% -18%
fnlssiatiuneusianisanidi / EPS before Exceptional ltem 3.42 2.53 2.30 35%
fnlsslatiundssnanisenidi / EPS after Exceptional Item 3.42 2.53 2.30 35%
i’]mmuﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁ;u / Book Value per share (net of treasury shares) 17.49 16.16 15.02 8%
ﬁumﬂm%ﬂﬁu (A1%411%) / Shares repurchased balance (m) 25.60 25.60 4.48
ﬁﬁmuﬁu (o Z‘%uﬂ) / Net Number of shares outstanding (year end) 804.88 804.88 826.00 0%

Operating Profit

Sales Revenue

M Baht

M Baht
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Dear Shareholder

By allaccounts in 2010 the Hana Group achieved a record year.

Following on from the rebound in the second half of 2009 our
growth continued into 2010 as consumer demand for electronic devices
surged especially within the emerging markets. Surprisingly, despite
the weak growth within the US and European economies, consumption
of electronic products held up well, driven by lower costs and new
product design innovations.

The combination of improved demand and market share gains
propelled the Hana Group to achieve strong growth culminating in a
record 2010 performance. However whilst we benefited from the strong
Asian economic performances we also began to suffer as the Thai
Baht strengthened by 12% to the US Dollar by the end of the third
quarter, 2010. The stronger Thai Baht had a material impact on our
cost structure in the fourth quarter and will continue to do so going
forward.

Nevertheless in 2010, the Hana Group recorded record sales
of THB 16,957 up YoY 26% from THB 13,457m. Operating income was
arecord at THB 2,473 up YoY 34% from THB 1,847m. EBITDA was a
record THB 2,749 up YoY 35% from THB 2,043 m and cash reserves
were THB 5,009 down YoY 16% from THB 6,000 m.

During 2010, our capital expenditure was a record THB 1,800m
as we added significant capacity to our semiconductor assembly and
PCBA operations (both for Ayutthaya and JiaXing).

Due to the land lease expiration in 2014 of our current head
office and Bangkok factory, we have purchased land nearby to
construct a new head office building, which we plan for completion
within 2013.

In contrastto the difficulties experience in 2009, our semiconductor
divisions had a record year in both revenue and units shipped. Our
significant investments initiated in the second half of 2009 bore fruit
and we were able to expand our output achieving a record of both
units shipped and revenues of 6,782 from the IC divisions. With an
additional 7,300 sa/m expansion competed at Ayutthaya by the end
of 2010 we are in a good position to continue our growth in 2011, in
which we expect strong IC growth for smart phones, consumer
electronics and industrial applications.

Our PCBA operations in both Lamphun and JiaXing had an
extremely good year achieving records sales of THB 9,083. Strong

$1901uUs:91U 2553 @ usen g1un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (UHBU)
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growth from the automotive sector, touch pads, control panels and
other computer peripherals led the demand. Access control devices
saw a steady recovery and our exposure to the medical devices
(hearing aids primarily) gained strong momentum. Once again we
enjoyed some excellent market share wins in addition to strong organic
growth.

Lamphun added 4,500sg/m of space which will enable us to
meet anticipated growth in 2011 and we are aiming to acquire additional
land before the end of Q1/2011 to prepare for further expansion in
2012 and beyond.

Throughout the year our Custom Package Group (CPG),
continued on the planned closure programme and by the end of 2010
had transferred about 95% of all operations to our sister companies
and/or back to our customers.

In Ohio, our micro display operations has seen a significant
increase in activity driven by the need to use our micro display process
to assemble high speed switches for the telecom infrastructure industry,
the advent of the miniature projector (Pico projector) which initially is
being used to make hand held projectors but has ambitions to be
embedded into mobile phones and the revival of the RFID asset tagging
business for a variety of applications, such as security, medical and
eventmanagement. As a result this division also saw positive contributions
to the group and is expected to grow further in 2011.

With the record year of 2010 behind us we enter 2011 with
cautious optimism. A strong currency and rising labour costs will prove
challenging but we continue to focus heavily on our productivity
programs though automation and lean manufacturing. The outlook
however remains encouraging with many of our customers expecting
growth through new opportunities which will help gain Hana more
market share.

We believe that demand will be strong in the following sectors,
mobile telecom (smart phones), medical, automotive and mobile
computing, (laptops and tablets) and we are confident that our diverse
exposure will position us well to enjoy further growth for Hana in 2011.

| would like to thank our valued customers and suppliers for all
their support during the year. The partnerships we enjoy have
developed though mutual understanding, trust and a spirit to support
one another though times of challenge and opportunity.

To my fellow directors, management and staff may | take this
opportunity to thank you for your dedication and tireless efforts to
achieve this record year? We all look forward to our quest for continued
growth in 2011.

Finally to all our shareholders, may | thank you for your trust in
Hana and on behalf of all the management we are committed to creating
further value for all our stake holders.

ann(

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn
Chairman of the Board of Directors

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ® ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd.

CPG is in the wind down phase preparing for the building
lease expiry in early 2014.

In 2010 CPG performed to our expectation, with two major
customers moving out as planned but with no major problems in
the respective business transfers. Both the small light emitting
diodes “LED”s and LED display have moved out which resulted in
the reduction of sale revenue in second half of 2010. Due to the
buffer build plan for these customers CPG was able to achieve a
better sales performance in the first half of 2010 prior to the business
transfers.

The fiber optic business remains strong with new products
introduced for both existing customers and new potential customers
for wireless telecommunication, LAN and networking system
applications.

Looking ahead into 2011, CPG will focus more on fiber optic
business to support the growth in demand of networking systems
and wireless telecommunications. We will work closely with our
customers to develop new packages to support their OEM
requirement in the fiber optics business.

The challenge will be continuous of price reduction in order
to gain more market share from end customers and to maintain a
contribution to Hana group performance whilst operating at lower
economies of scale due to the overall business operation of CPG.

Mr. Issra Sivakul
Vice President and General Manager

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ® ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.
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2010 was year of record performance for Hana Semiconductor
(Ayutthaya). New records were set in terms of Sales Revenue and
unit production. Our Sales broke the previous record set in 2007
in terms of both revenue and volume with the factory producing
more than four billion units during the year.

We added more than 7,300 square meters of factory and
office space to meet the increased demands for production from
our customers. This expansion included a new Final Test building
and a combination warehouse/office building to accommodate our
growth.

We introduced several new products during the year that are
expected to go into high volume production in 2011 and beyond.
These include several offerings in System-In-Package solutions
and a new family of clear proximity sensors. These new products
were made possible through investments made in assembly and
test technology improvements.

One of the areas we are most proud of is a dramatic
improvement in manufacturing cycle time reduction while
maintaining quality and yields. Cycle time reduction benefits our
customers in terms of reduced time to market and less Work-In-
Process inventory.

Overall, the semiconductor industry grew more than 30% in
2010 and Hana Semiconductor grew slightly faster than the industry.
We increased our workforce by more than 50% and nearly doubled
our manufacturing capacity. We are now well positioned for further
growth in 2011 and beyond.

We expect to see continued growth in 2011 although at a
slower rate than seen in 2010. We have the manpower and installed
capacity in place to achieve our 2011 goals and expect to have
another record year for Hana Semiconductor.

Mr. Bruce Stromstad
General Manager
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2010 was a very good year for Hana LPN, setting new records
for revenue and profit, with 15% growth. Computer parts and
peripherals such as touchpads for portable computers and
computer mouse tracking devices showed especially strong growth.
Assembilies for sensor products for both automotive and industrial
applications also recovered strongly from the weakness in 2009.

Throughout the year, we continued our focus on quality
improvement processes and team-building (both inter-department
and using the Quality Control Circle, “QCC”). Furthermore, we also
won for the second year running “The Diamond prize for Junior
QCC Award” and “The QCC Promoter Award for Top Management”
organized by Technology Promotion Association of Thailand.

Our automation department continued its important role in
improving productivity and quality for Hana LPN. Various automation
systems were implemented in the production line, such as auto-
soldering, auto-dispensing, and auto-inspection etc. These
improvements were well recognized by all of our customers. We
also implemented a number of software driven quality tracking and
monitoring systems helping us to gain “The Best Supplier of the
Year” awards from our largest customer.  Our fourth plant which
was completed in Q4 2010 provided an additional 4,500 sgm of
space and will allow us to further expand in 2011.

Looking forward, we anticipate 2011 will continue to show
strong growth from our major customers in the automotive, computer
interface, medical and consumer related industries. We will continue
our quality improvement program to meet our customers’ “zero
defect” expectation, and will participate more in “social responsibility
requirement” activities.

| would like to thank all of the Hana LPN team for their whole-
hearted dedication in their achievements for 2010. Our “can do”
attitude will take us forward again in 2011.

Mr. Wing Keung Chow
Vice President and General Manager
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HANA Microelectronics Jiaxing recovered rapidly from the
2009 recession and achieved its best ever growth in 2010; 20%
higher than 2008 which was a peak year in Hana China history.
The consolidated sales revenue grew by 67% year on year with a
74% growth in the semiconductor business and a 65% growth in
the PCBA business respectively, resulting in total revenue of
US$120M.

To support the growing demands of our customers, we
invested approximately $12M to boost the production capacity by
50% for IC package, SMT and COB devices. As the business grew
rapidly, ensuring a consistent level of quality of both product and
service was a challenge but the team made it a remarkable success.
Direct labor recruitment has been another challenge throughout
the year. However, we managed to overcome this by developing
a stronger relationship with a few key technical schools from various
provinces in China.

A series of organization restructures undertaken in 2009 were
completed in early 2010. The most challenging reorganization was
to merge the IC and the Micro divisions. Thanks to the understanding
and the support of our management team from both divisions, the
consolidations were smoothly executed and it has laid down an
enhanced foundation for continued growth of Hana Jiaxing in the
future.

Customer demand remains very strong and we fully expect
that the business will continue to expand in 2011. However, the
pressure on profitability will remain due to the rapid increase in
labor cost, on-going RMB appreciation and price reduction requests
from customers. In recognition that China is no longer a cheap
manufacturing place, we will put more effort and resources on
process automation to reduce the labor dependence and improve
our overall manufacturing cost. We will do whatever it takes to
continue to stay competitive and bring our quality and service to
the next level.

Mr. Steven Lee
Executive Vice President and General Manager
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Hana Microdisplay Technologies, INC

2010 was a good year for HMT. The beginning of the recovery
in the world economy combined with successful market-share gains
of some of its larger customers, led to an overall increase in revenue
of 144% for the year. Quarter on quarter growth over 2010 of 59%,
152%, 136%, and 210%, respectively from Q1 through Q4,
demonstrated the consistency of the recovery. Revenue from
microdisplay-related business was up 200% from 2009. Radio-
frequency identification (RFID) revenue also increased 34%
for the year.

The microdisplay related business for HMT that had a strong
finish in 2009 continued to grow in early 2010. HMT’s cost cutting
and customer pruning efforts in 2008 and early 2009 paid dividends
as its stable customers began to grow and gain market share in
2010. HMT continues to support microdisplay customers in the
areas of adaptive optics, telecom devices, medical devices, and
mini-projection systems. All of these markets are forecasting steady,
albeit less dramatic growth in 2011.

In 2010 HMT added capacity for its RFID manufacturing
services in Q3. The additional equipment will more than double
the available output. Unfortunately the product mix of RFID activity
moved to more high-volume, lower priced products in the second
half of the year. Thus, HMT was only able to achieve a 60% increase
in revenue in Q4. HMT's RFID tire tag business declined 17% in
2010, but forecasts and initial orders point to an increase in 2011.

HMT performed well financially in 2010. It controlled its costs
during periods of rapid growth, and negotiated cost reductions with
materials and equipment vendors as its usage increased throughout
the year. HMT increased the utilization of its sister factory in
Ayutthaya in 2010, which further strengthened its solid financial
performance. HMT looks forward to the challenge of continuing
steady growth with its customers in 2011.

Mr. John Erdmann
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Mr. Richard David Han
Executive Vice Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn
Chairman of the board,
Independent Director

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui
President & Chief Operating Officer

O

O

Mr. Martin Enno Horn
Audit Committee,
Independent Director

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir
Executive Director &
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi
Audit Committee,
Independent Director

O
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1. Mrs. Watcharaporn Jirathanakun
Operations Director

2. Mr. Issra Sivakul

Vice President and General Manager
3. Ms. Achara Chaicharncheep
Senior Accounting Manager

4. Mrs. Puntipa Tanthana
Corporate Manufacturing Administration Director
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e Management Team

5. Mr. Somchai Chantrachirathumrong
Corporate Management Information System (MIS) Director

6. Mr. Wanakorn Nonkhunthod

Customer Service Common / HPG Operations Senior Manager
7. Mr. Viruch Jeivisarn

Senior Corporate Human Resources Manager

8. Ms. Jirapa Kongmanee
Senior Internal Audit Manager

Ayutthaya Management

1. Ms. Areenee Kittisupornpong
Senior Management Information System (MIS) Manager
2. Mrs. Saowanee Rachatakarn
Senior Financial Controller Manager

3. Mrs. Tongsuk Vongsukharutai
Supply Chain Management Director

4. Mr. Tossaphol Phowcharoen
Senior Facility, Safety & IE Manager

5. Mr. Bruce Stromstad

Vice President & General Manager

6. Ms. Samantha Kulasinghe

Manufacturing Support & Services, Production Planning,

Industrial Engineer Director

7. Ms. Praphaphun Naradilok

Senior Human Resources Manager

8. Ms. Tappawong Na Tarang

Senior Marketing & Account Management Manager
9. Ms. Thawanvaree Pichitnorakarn
Senior Procurement & Purchasing Manager

10. Mr. Vicente T. Lau Jr.

Quality and Reliability Assurance Director

11. Mr. Joseph D. Caliston

Senior Marketing & Account Management Manager

l
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12. Mr. Pongsak Klongjai
Senior End of Line Manufacturing Manager

13. Mr. Reynaldo N. San Agustin
Sales & Marketing Manager
14. Mr. Kitisak Kobkuwattana

Senior Research and Development / New Project
Investment (R&D/NPI) Manager

15. Mr. Supakit Tantara
Customer Specific Operations (CSO) Director

16. Mr. Pongsakorn Jangsatian

Senior Quality Engineer Manager

17. Mr. Punsak Eammongkolchai

Standard IC Front of Line Operations Director

18. Mr. Ekachai Yartpakdee

Senior M/A COM Project Manager

19. Mr. Jesus Manila Monreal

Standard IC End of Line Operations / Plant Training Director
20. Mr. Chaweng Tantiyaphorn

Test and Finished Products Director
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Management Team

1. Mr. Steven Spittal

Business Development Director

2. Mr. Chanarong Disyamal

Operations Director

3. Mr. Fok Hong Pun

Operations Director

4. Mr. Wing Keung Chow

Vice President & General Manager

5. Ms. Juthamard Trerattanawongse
Senior Finance Manager

6. Mr. Wichai Sukprasertkul

Operations Director

7. Mr. Jirasak Maleekaew

Production & Material Control & Logistics Director
8. Mr. Christian Cron

Supply Chain Management Director

9. Mr. Alak Punkabutra

Senior Business Development & Technology Manager
10. Mr. Thanawat Pasikthep

General Administration Manager

11. Mr. Somjai Namwongsa
Senior HRD. Manager
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JiaXing Microelectronics Management

12. Mr. Chalermpon Narksang

Senior Customer Service Manager

13. Mr. Sa-ard Ngamkajang

Senior Test Engineering Manager

14. Mr. Sathit Umpai

Senior Operations Manager

15. Mr. Tosaporn Musikcharoen
Senior Industrial Engineering & Facility Manager
16. Mr. Thawatchai Kumprasert
Senior Management Information System Manager
17. Mr. Anawat Aroonsawat

Senior Production & Material Control Manager
18. Mr. Seree Nuanim

Senior Quality Reliability Assurance Manager

19. Mr. Wong Wan Wah Vincent
Senior Supply Chain Management Manager

1. Ms. Jane Li

Senior Finance Manager

2. Mr. David Zhu

Director of Supply Chain Management

3. Mr. Andy Shen

Director of Micro Operations

4. Mr. Steven Lee

Vice President & General Manager (Microelectronics Operations)
5. Mr. Dirrick Ong

Director of Business Development & Technology
6. Mr. Martin Chen

Senior New project investment (NPI) Manager

7. Ms. Lucy Guo
General Administration Manager

8. Mr. Raymond Ng
Senior QA Manager

9. Mr. Jet Lee

Senior Process Control / Development Manager (IC)

10. Mr. TC Cheah

Senior Test Engineering Manager (IC)

11. Mr. Peter Xu

Senior Management Information System (MIS) Manager
12. Mr. Gordon Gu

Facility Manager

13. Mr. Steven Chua

Senior Engineering Manager (MICRO)

14. Mr. SW Lum
Senior Purchasing Manager

15. Mr. York Li

Senior Manufacturing Support Manager
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1. Mr. Paul R. Brown, Jr.
Vice President of Business Development

2. Ms. Susan A. Nilsen
Financial Controller

3. Mr. Edward M. Stiles llI

Vice President of Product Development

1. Ms. Karrie O’ Neill
Account Manager

2. Ms. Michelle Nguyen
Account Manager

3. Mrs. Malee Lowchareonkul
Sales Manager

4. Mr. Steve Hanway

Director of Business Development
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Hana Microdisplay Management

4. Dr. John H. Erdmann
President and CEO

5. Mr. D. Scott Worthington
Vice President of Manufacturing

HANA Microelectronics Inc. Management

5. Mr. Sanjay Mitra
President - U.S. Sales and Marketing

6. Mr. Thang Bui
Director of Business Development

7. Mr. BK Ng

Senior Manager Strategic Projects and Technical Support

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ® ANNUAL REPORT 2010




lASVasSIvavANS

58 %

42 %

s18vuUs:91U 2553 @ usen gqun Tulasaiaalnsind 910A (UNIvU)




_—

u18Unys1 NMUWS:NS

Auunlsilaqiiu : 1U3T87UNIINNNT WATNITUNNIBATY
sziAmsyinanu D W8, 2545 - Tlaqifi nesuNNsRdsy
.. 2550 - 11aq1T 1sea11nssunILTEN
QAIMSANEN - AULTYEIIMNNITEUNANT, NPNABUABL,
UsemAguI eI
1szaRmaausnann IOD : Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
40/2005

duauuiie o 31 8.A. 2553
: 95,000 i1 (0.011%)

u18svISA 1M3A du

Aunisilaqiiy : 7891528UNITNNNS, UTTaULTINT UaY
Wandaeias

sziAmsyinanu : 2532 - 119111 NFTUNNTLITUNTLITEN

QAMSANT - Sty ssnI9LEuMIgana, NuAnenan

Westminster, N3NaaUARY,
dezmAanamannang
1By InLEMg (NNFARIA), INANENAE
City, N8 UABY, LTLAGYNINTRNNNANT
Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
57/2006
Understanding the Fundamental
of Financial Statements (UFS) 4/2006
duduuiite a 31 8.a. 2553

: 1,040,000 %14 (0.125%)

U5aRmMaausNann 10D :

ungdudu Yo g go

Aunsilaqiiy : dsraugusenmsuazviuthehefifnng
Useimsvinanu : 2531 - {1aq1fi NITNAILIUNTLTEY
QAIMSANEN - Fyoye? AaNTINANERT NNt

Cheng Kong tszimnalsiudu
szaimsausuaIn oD : -
duduuiite a 31 8.a. 2553
: 7,720,000 %14 (0.930%)

urgnasisus Tlaud 138s

Funsilaqiiy - savtsrsnuiTinsLaziantindenaku
Useiimsvinanu : 2533 - {19171 NITNAILINNTLTE
QAIMSANEN ; Boyeynsis LATHANERS, Nanendt

Macquarie, UssinAaadiniae

1szaRmaausnann IOD : Director Certification Program (DCP)

6/2001, Diploma
MUIUYUNTD W 31 6.A. 2553
: 175,000 %1 (0.021%)

Directors & Management

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

Position . Chairman of the Board and Independent
Director

Working Experience : November 2002 - present, Independent
Director

February 2007 - present, Chairman of the
Board of Directors
. Diploma of Institute of Banker, London, UK
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
40/2005
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010

: 95,000 Shares (0.011%)

Mr. Richard David Han

Position . Executive Vice Chairman and Chief

Educational Background
10D Training Background :

Executive Officer

Working Experience : 1989 - present, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
: B.A. Business Studies, Westminster,
London, UK
M.B.A. (Marketing), City University,
London, UK
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
57/2006
Understanding the Fundamental
of Financial Statements (UFS) 4/2006
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010
: 1,040,000 Shares (0.125%)

Educational Background

10D Training Background :

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

President & Chief Operating Officer
: 1988 - present, Executive Director

Position

Working Experience

Educational Background : Bachelor of Engineering, Cheng Kong
University, Taiwan

10D Training Background : -

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010

: 7,720,000 Shares (0.930%)

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

Position

. Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

Working Experience : 1990 - present, Executive Director

Educational Background : Bachelor of Economics, Macquarie
University, CPA, Australia

10D Training Background : Director Certification Program (DCP)

6/2001, Diploma

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010

: 175,000 Shares (0.021%)
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Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

Position . Independent Director

Working Experience : June 2000 - present, Independent Director

Educational Background : Graduate Diploma, International Business
Administration, WLU, Ontario, Canada
Bachelor Degree of Engineer,
Chulalongkorn University

|OD Training Background : Monitoring the Internal Audit Function
(MIA) 1/2007; Monitoring the System of
Internal Control and Risk Management
(MIR) 1/2007; Director Certification
Program (DCP) 53/2005; Finance for Non-
Finance Director (FND) 15/2005;
Audit Committee Program (ACP) 5/2005;
Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
30/2004

No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010

: 890,020 Shares (0.107%)

Mr. Martin Enno Horn

Position . Independent Director

Working Experience : 2001 - present, Independent Director
Educational Background : Electronic Engineering, California
Polytechnic, U.S.A.
AEA Executive Business Institute,
Stanford University, California, U.S.A.
IOD Training Background : Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)
57/2006
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010 : -

Mr. Wing Keung Chow

Position . Vice President & General Manager

Hana-Lamphun
Working Experience : 2001 - 2007, Vice President Marketing &
Customer Services Hana-Lamphun
Educational Background : Master Degree of Management, SASIN,
Chulalongkorn University
IOD Training Background : -
No. of Share held as of 31 Dec. 2010
1 929,500 Shares (0.112%)
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Board Structure

The board of directors consists of six directors of whom three
are independent directors. The board may review and determine
the size of the board that is most effective in relation to future
operations. It is board policy to have at least three independent
directors to be accountable to two-thirds of the board.

In addition to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
board of directors shall have the following responsibilities and
duties in line with the best practices of corporate governance.

1. Approve the Company’s vision, mission and business
plan

2. Review the performance of the CEO and ensure that
Executive Committee carries out the policy and day-to-day
operation of the Company properly

3. Ensure that the internal control system and risk
management are sufficiently maintained and monitored

4. Oversee the conflict of interest that might be taking place
to be in line with the present regulations

5. Review and approve audited financial statement

6. Oversee the accurate and timely disclosure of information
to the public

7. Ensure that members of the board shall not use inside
information for personal benefis.

In conducting the business of the company, a director and
an executive shall perform his duty with responsibility, due care
and loyalty, and shall comply with all laws, the objectives, the
Articles of Association of the Company, the resolutions of the board
of directors and the resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting.

Board Committees:

The board currently has four committees - Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities.

The Executive Committee:
Structure: The Committee currently comprises of three members.

Term: There is no term limit.
Name Position

Mr. Richard David Han

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Authorities and responsibilities of the Executive

Committee Members:

1. Perform and manage the company’s business to comply
with the policies, mission and business plans as determined by
the board of directors

2. Determine budget and the management’s authorities of
the company

3. Monitor and follow up the operation of the company’s
policies to ensure its efficiency

4. Monitor and follow up the performance of the company
to ensure its compliance with the business plan

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ® ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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5. Consider the large investment projects of the company
such as a joint venture, a construction of new plant etc. and any
significant transaction shall be proposed to the board for approval

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors

Audit Committee:

Structure: The Audit Committee was formally established since
September 10, 1999. The Committee consists entirely of non-
executive directors, who are independent from Hana operations
and free from any relationship that might in the opinion of the board
of directors to be construed as a conflict of interest.

Term: The Chairman and members are appointed for an initial

term of two years.

Name Position
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn Chairman
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi Member
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Audit Committee:

1. Oversee financial reporting process and the disclosure
of financial information to ensure accuracy, sufficiency and
creditability, by coordinating with the external auditors and the
management responsible for preparing the quarterly and yearly
financial reports

2. Review the Company’s Internal Control System and
Internal Audit System to ensure that they are suitable and efficient,
to determine an Internal Audit unit's independence, as well as to
approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the chief of an
internal audit unit

3. Review the Company’s compliance with the Law on
Securities and Exchange, The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s
regulations, and the laws relating to the Company’s business

4. Consider, select and nominate an independent person
to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such person’s
remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting
with an auditor at least once a year

5. Review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions
that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they are in
compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are
reasonable and for the highest benefit of the Company

6. Prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report,
an audit committee’s report which must be signed by the audit
committee’s chairman

7. Consider other duties as defined by the board of directors

8. In its performance of duties, if it is found or suspected
that there is a transaction or any of the following acts which may
materially affect the Company’s financial condition and operating
results, the Audit Committee shall report it to the Board of Directors
for rectification within the period of time that the Audit Committee
thinks fit. If the Company’s board of directors or management
fails to make a rectification within the period of time under the
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Board Structure

first paragraph, any Audit Committee Member may report on the
transaction or act under the first paragraph to the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET).

Nomination Committee:

Structure: The Nomination Committee was established in November
2004. It consists of two independent directors and one executive
director. The Committee will at all time consist of a majority of
independent non-executive directors.

Term: The Chairman and members are appointed for the term of
two years.

Name Position
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi Chairman
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member
Mr. Richard David Han Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee:
1. To ensure a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointments of new directors and key executives to the board
2. To make recommendations to the board on the
independence of any existing or proposed non-executive director
3. Toreview annually the size and composition of the board
and to recommend any proposed changes to the board

swwaduAMsIdnsouUs:guAu:NssuNsia:us:yudiioriu / Meetings of the Board, Board Committees and Shareholders:

REER Y ADUZNITUNNTLTENY  ADUENITUNNIAIIRGDL  ADIENITNNIATINN ansTrydiiatiu
Meetings Board of Directors Audit Committee Nomination Committee ~ Annual General Meeting

uauaTansUsygalull 2553 4 4 1 1

Total number of meetings in 2010

AnuauaTInddandsegu/Adaudonlsygalull 2553

Number of meeting attended/participated in 2010

N994N19LTUNT:Executive Directors:

UNEFI50 Leam Fi 4 4 1 1

Mr. Richard David Han

WU 39 7 g8 3 n/a n/a 1

Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

wamasfisus Wad Res 4 4 n/a 1

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

N990N19843%: Independent Directors:

12T NUNTENS 4 4 n/a 1

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

wrenIwal mwaunlse@ns 4 4 1 1

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

waunFau 1aulu aasu 4 4 1 1

Mr. Martin Enno Horn
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Risk Management Committee:

The board of directors has appointed the Risk Management
Committee and review the adequacy of the risk management
system at least annually, or when necessary. The board also pays
attention to early warning signs and unusual transactions reported
by the Risk Management Committee.

Appointment of Director

The board shall consist of directors who exercise sound
business judgment and process the business expertise, knowledge,
professional experiences, have high standard of integrity and are
ready to exercise their duties. At least one director has a financial
background for membership of the Audit Committee. In addition,
the director shall not be a person who violates any regulations
stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Securities and
Exchange Commission or the Company Articles of Association.
The board shall consider the proposal for appointment from the
Nomination Committee before recommend to the shareholders.

The newly appointed director shall receive an orientation
regarding the company’s business, duties and responsibilities of
directors. The brief review shall be led by the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer or his appointee. All other necessary
information shall be given by the company’s secretary.

Service on Other Boards

In order to give proper attention and contribution to the
assigned responsibilities, the board believes that directors
including the CEO should limit their services to not more than three
boards of publicly traded companies in addition to Hana and its
associate companies.

CEO and Board Evaluation

On an annual basis, the performance of CEO is evaluated
by the independent directors whilst the board shall conduct a self-
evaluation of its performance according to the criteria being set.
All directors are free to make suggestions to improve the board’s
performance.

Succession Plan

The board shall ensure a systematic nomination for the proper
candidate to replace a significant director or executive position
suitably in line with the succession planning policy. The Nomination
Committee is appointed to propose the appointments of new
directors and key executives (Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer) to the board by
considering the proper candidate both from internal and external
candidates.

Corporate Secretary to the Board

The corporate secretary is the primary liaison between the
corporation’s directors and management. The board has formally
appointed the corporate secretary on 11 August 2008 to carry out
the duties and responsibilities according to Section 89/15 of
Securities and Exchange Act No. 4 B.E. 2551. The corporate
secretary shall perform duties with care and responsibility and in
good faith as well as in compliance with all laws, the objectives,
the articles of association of the company, and the resolutions of
the board of directors and the shareholders’ meeting.
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/ Corporate Information

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.
Register No. PLC 0107536000773
10/4 Moo 3 Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd., Kwang Talad Bangkhen,
Khet Laksi, Bangkok 10210, Thailand
Tel. 02-551-1297, 02-521-4935-9
Fax: 02-551-1299, 02-552-4906

Type of business: Electronics
Number and Type of Share Issued:
Ordinary shares: 830,474,960 shares
Treasury shares: 25,596,100 Shares
Total voting shares: 804,878,860 Shares
(as of 31 December 2010)

Nature of Business

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic component
and mainly carried on in the geographic area in Thailand, Hong
Kong, USA and China.

Business classification policy

The Group’s business operations are primarily Microelectronics
the assembly of components, sub-assemblies and small electronic
finished products. The major product groups are printed circuit
board assembly “PCBA”, integrated circuit “IC” assembly and test,
Light Emitting Diodes “LED” assembly and Liquid Crystal on Silicon
“LCoS” assembly with factories in Thailand, China and USA.

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy to pay shareholders is
approximately 30-100% of its consolidated net income after
deduction of all specified reserves, subject to the Company and
its subsidiaries’ cash flow and investment plans, including
justifications and other considerations as deemed appropriate. The
dividend policy the subsidiaries to pay the Company is 0 — 100%
of appropriated earnings.

(Unit: Million Baht)

NaRSTUAT Atuaulag % NNINOYUTALITEMN 2991 2992 2999
’ i 2008 2009 2010
PRODUCT COMPANY % OF HOLDING
REVENUE % REVENUE % REVENUE %
IC HS — AYT & HM - JX 100% 5,046 & 4,484 33 6,783 40
CPG HS — BKK 100% 1,626 11 1,106 8 869 5
PCBA HM - LPN & HM - JX 100% 8.308 55 7.766 58 9.084 54
MICRODISPLAY HMT - USA 100% 125 1 102 1 223 1
TOTAL 15,105 100 13,458 100 16,958 100
HM-LPN = Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. HS-AYT = Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd. HMT = Hana Microdisplay Technologies
HS-BKK = Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd. HM-JX = Hana Microelectronics (JiaXing) Co., Ltd.

lnsvasiomsiieriu ua:n1sdanns / Shareholding Structure and Management
faviuselun) deya ou Sullaayemzidauangn o Sui 10 Hunaw 2553/ Major Shareholders as of the latest closing registration book on 10 March 2010

aiinvu: Huadey / Type of Shares: Ordinary shares

%'ﬂ / Name
OMAC (HK) LIMITED, 135 Taunm [11m, RAINBOW JOY LIMITED
STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY FOR LONDON
HSBC PRIVATE BANK (SUISSE) SA
BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES LUXEMBOURG
FORTIS GLOBAL CUSTODY SERVICES N.V.
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD
N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-RBS AS DEP FOR FS
BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES SINGAPORE BRANCH
THE BANK OF NEW YORK (NOMINEES) LIMITED
10. ynedudnens S

/761 / No.

OF R O (Gl = (R D e

©

AMUUYU / No. of Share (%)
253,419,360 30.51
94,479,400 11.38
63,985,300 7.70
29,957,900 3.61
24,500,000 2.95
21,528,100 2.59
18,585,000 2.24
12,435,500 1.50
12,151,900 1.46
11,070,697 1.33

wneme: AL (1) Aegliedunguinaaiuniuunns 258 wiwsu.nanninduazaaiananninduvisdssmalne (atui 4) w.a. 2551

Remark: No. (1) is the related companies under Section 258 of the Securities and Exchagse Act (No. 4) B.E. 2551
O
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Subsidiary Company No. of Shares
Sunuuiisinient]
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited 99,999,994
10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd. Kwang Talad

Bangkhen, Khet Laksi, Bangkok 10210

Tel: (02) 551-1297 fax : (02) 551-1299

Type of business : Electronics

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited 69,999,993
100 Moo 1
13160

Tel: (035) 350170-7 fax : (035) 350805-6

Type of business : Electronics

, T. Ban Lane, A. Bangpain, Ayutthaya

Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited 2
P.O. Box 71, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,

Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Type of business: Trading products

Hana Microelectronics Investment Company Limited 2
P.O. Box 71
Tortola, British Virgin Islands

, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,

Type of business: Investment

Omac Sales Limited 99,999
16E, On Fook Industrial Building, 41-45 Kwai Fung
Crescent, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

Type of business: Purchasing and Marketing

Hana Technologies Group Limited 2
Maples and Calder, Attorneys-at-Law, Ugland House,

P.O. Box 309, George Town, Cayman, Cayman

Islands, British West Indies

Type of business: Investment

References

Auditor:

Ernst & Young office, Ltd.,

33rd Fl., Lake Rajada Office Complex,
193/136-137 New Rajadapisek Road,
Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel.: 02-264-0777

Fax: 02-264-0790

Solicitors:

Damrongtham Law Office

63 Soi 8 (Soi Preeda),

Sukhumvit Road,

Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel.: 02-255-2550-2, 02-653-1133-4
Fax: 02-653-1135, 02-253-3427
Share Registrar:

Thailand Securities Depository

62 Rachadapisek Road,

Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Tel.: 02-229-2800

Fax: 02-359-1259
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Corporate Governance

The long-term success of a company is largely determined
by the support we earn from our customers, investors, employees,
business partners, and local community. To strengthen
stakeholders’ confidence, Hana is committed to good corporate
governance by compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance wherever possible and practical for the company. The
corporate governance policy, which is published on the company’s
website, provides the guidelines under which the board of directors
operates. We will continue to seek improvements to our solid
foundation in good corporate governance.

A compliance program is an important element in the
corporate governance. In 2010, Hana complied with good corporate
governance principles as follows.

1. Rights of Shareholders

Hana recognizes the importance of shareholders’ rights and
treats all shareholders equitably, fairly and in line with relevant
laws. All shareholders have the equal rights for each class of shares
to receive the dividend payment, to buy, sell and transfer shares
including the right to access or obtain the company’s information
disclosed to shareholders and the public. All shareholders have
the right to attend the shareholders’ meetings and are eligible to
vote in accordance with the voting rights of the respective share
class of their share holdings. There are no actions that violate the
right of shareholders, such as not changing or adding agenda
items without notifying shareholders in advance or which limit the
access to the company’s information that is released to public. The
company also assists shareholders beyond what is required by
laws covering their rights, such as arranging company visits so
that shareholders or interested persons can have the opportunity
to understand more about the company and our operations.

To encourage shareholders to exercise their rights in
shareholders’ meeting, the company takes actions as follows.
Before the meeting day:

The company holds the annual general meeting of
shareholders within 4 months after financial year ends. In 2010, the
company held the Meeting on 30 April 2010 at 2:00 P.M. at the
hotel close to Headquarters office. The company arranged with the
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. or “TSD” which is the
company’s securities deposit registrar send the notice of
shareholders’ meeting 7 days prior to the meeting date in order to
provide sufficient time for shareholders to review the agenda. The
notice of meeting expressly indicated the matters to be tabled at
the meeting, whether for acknowledgement, approval or
consideration, including the board’s opinion on each agenda. Other
supporting information and documents were also attached to the
notice. In addition to the direct delivery, the notice of meeting was
made available to the shareholders through the company’s website
(http://www.hanagroup.com) 30 days in advance and the notice
of meeting was published through SET’s information system or
“ELCID” in both Thai and English versions, which were the same
as the original notice mailed to shareholders.

On the meeting day:

The quorum, voting procedures and voting count method
are clearly advised to the meeting prior to the discussion of the
agenda items. In regards to the annual general meeting conducted
in 2010, 6 out of 6 directors (100%) attended the meeting. Those
key directors were the Chairman of the Board and Audit Committee,
Chief Executive Officer, and the Chairman of the Nomination
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Committee. The Chief Financial Officer and external auditor also
attended the meeting so that they could listen to shareholders’
opinions or suggestions and also answer any questions.

The board of directors allows shareholders to elect each
director eligible for election on individual basis. The ballot is used
and kept for evidence and verification. Shareholders are given the
opportunity to raise questions, recommendations as well as provide
their opinions on the company’s performance or other concerns
on an equitable basis.

After the meeting day:

The meeting minutes recording the course of the meeting
and all issues discussed at the meeting, the results of shareholder
voting on each agenda and the decisions made by the meeting
are made available within the appropriate time to the shareholders.
The minutes of the annual general meeting in 2010 was posted to
the company’s website within the following business day after the
meeting and at the same time sent to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. If shareholders have any inquiries or comments on the
minutes, they can contact to the corporate secretary. The minutes
are maintained at the Company’s head office.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

Hana pays special attention to the interest of the Company’s
owners - the shareholders. Equitable treatment is given with fairess
to all categories of shareholders as follows.

Treat all class equally

The company ensures fair treatment of shareholders
irrespective of the size of each of their share holdings. Foreign
shareholders and owners of small stakes (minority shareholders)
are treated equally. All of shareholders, in respect of each class
of shares, are entitled to the same dividend payments, and have
equal rights in the event of share capital increases. The company’s
shareholder meetings are open to all shareholders, and all shares
of the same class have the same voting rights. Voting at the annual
shareholders’ meeting is done by the principle of one share, one
vote. Shareholders, who cannot attend the shareholders’ meeting,
can authorize our independent directors on their behalf to attend
the meeting and vote by using the proxy forms. Shareholders are
allowed to propose candidates for election to the board and
propose items for the agenda of annual general meeting in advance.
The company’s annual general meeting of shareholders conducted
in 2010 offered the opportunity for shareholders to add items to
the agenda and resolutions for the meeting including to propose
candidates to be elected as directors. Shareholders could, (during
the period from October — December 2009), submit proposals for
agenda items for the annual shareholders meeting to the board of
directors. The procedures and criteria to nominate the director to
the board and propose items for the agenda for the annual general
meeting have been posted to the company’s website. However,
in 2010 there were no shareholder proposals sent to the board of
directors for consideration. The matters discussed in the general
meeting of shareholders were in sequence as given in the invitation
letter.

Prohibit insider trading and abusive self-dealing

The company has the policy to prevent directors and
executives from taking advantage of inside information, from
dishonest dealing for themselves and their related parties. Insider
trading is prohibited. Hana has established a system to prevent
the use of inside information for personal benefits as follows.

« Communicate the compliance of the policy of Business
Code of Conduct of the board of directors, executives and

$1901uUs:91U 2553 @ uSen g1un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (UKLU)




ANE1TOLTULAR

* NIINNTUATHLETMIRNNIEUTUADIUENINNTTIDATRINGD
nindiumeyang uariinnemesunsiionsamdnningdronns
NITUNTPBUAZATY

il 2553 AnuenssunsuazgLimsla AR uulengating
LR iuﬂiﬁﬂngmﬁ@mmu‘lumawmLmj

JauvAuldavnasiidouladoulde (powdandonitowaus:lesu)

mm‘vﬂﬁumﬂﬁﬁmumﬂﬂmﬂLL@“Lmeqmiﬂﬁﬁﬁa‘?wﬁu
nesunsuazgLimslunismaauanudaudamnuaaslond e
Equ“Lqmmmmnm mmmiﬂguwmwmﬁmwmvumm
Gﬁ@ﬁmmimiumimmu’m Toeflsitiuatls=lamigoumnilaidnanis
peeviFanwdan Tnadmunuinislinesunisuasfuiunailome
fuammmimm@ﬂivimumumum@mafmﬁiﬂﬁulm Aenaaziluam
nsenuiuLEv Tnaduniauuunefuldfunis eudRainane
nssung laenssunsvizediismnadenanaggnaniiu ladlidndon
mumu"l,ummmmu%Lw'awawmnﬁmﬁwmumquimz\humwm
Nenades ImﬂuLamumimwwLﬂummwmumﬂﬂmLmﬂmmmu
”Lma';uLmwmmwmmavmmmm@ mmmmmmmmﬂsvmu
ﬂi‘iuﬂ’1ﬁ‘LL@vﬂivﬁﬁuﬂi‘iNﬂqﬁ‘ﬁliQ‘i@‘ﬂU snﬂuﬂ 2553 laifinstlaqna
daunfananatsslamizainssunisuazisvnsnitiawaliingsunis
NATTUN

3. ansvevdldoulmde
mmmuammmﬁﬂuﬂwumu%sz Tntamznssunsidai
fiwmnmiwmmammmwmgumuimsz azifuilsclomiisia
Nndrelusrazenn eluimensfiRssndramimuasiidou
Iede Al
wieru .
U3Enegunarussguadsalunisairaniaiuinaes
melddmingefuluszarenn nesunsuazitmausazyiouag
fesfinnuaniiRimaunzauniusium soaafinnnailadamly
uwmwmmmmuﬂ,uma‘mﬂmLmﬂfami uazldransnunyraslunig
mLuuﬁ?mme@ﬂiwimuwmmmmummu,a fiatu miﬂgum
pofTauIaILTENAzANTUINAUUANNMIRTURLATIAN1INA e
&vduarnsUfiiFsedieunauetaviniianiu nnadlamedeya
araguuiuguanuuieniu danuasufiunazgniedeies
AREaTUAIUTNINTBIUTEHN TINANITANTLIIU SUN12RY
nstityduazaeeuan usEmlAlfiRnumannisiaiufanisia
lunsdndszgugfafuiszdnd Toalull 2553 1sdnldnzuuu
e ELumiﬂ?‘”mum@msﬂivwmumﬂmﬁﬂmnfauusﬁwm‘imﬂ
ArineuanznssunsiAuuannInedLaznaauannine (n.a.5.)
wazannANALETHE A Llne
anf .
annlianudAnetnangasegnAtseidm nilqas
vinefiazaausuairalitinisimilandiauaiandarasgnin
nWAUANNIRIALAY NedndanenFudn AnaTeu 1iala
WAYTIANANMANG 131+ L Hungnéndaiug (Customer Services
Department) smwmmwﬂivmumunmnm lunsfudaiaveunus
A mwmmmmfm_lmmﬂwuﬂumimLuumumw"LmN”Lq
viiminleamsldnswdauidianunazningaunniony
094N NgIta  wazazUfiRsnssdauizedennasmndnynyn

gy

b

employees. The directors and executives are required to sign on
acknowledgement of the policy on an annual basis.

« Inform the board of directors and executive by a circular
letter that those who may gain inside information should avoid
trading the Company’s securities for the period of one month before
the Company announces its financial statements to the public and
at least 24 hours after the information is widely spread out to the
public.

* The shareholding status has been confirmed with individual
director and executive and report to the Board on a monthly basis.

The directors and executives of the company have complied
with this policy strictly. There was no violation of the trading shares
during the prohibited period in 2010.

Corporate Governance

Enforce material interest (Conflict of Interest)

The board of directors has established the policy and
procedure for directors and executives to report on conflict of
interest to ensure that they are abided by their fiduciary duties in
the way that they must not have interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in the matter under their decision. Directors and
executives are required to disclose any material interest in
transactions or matters affecting the corporation through the
established form approved by the board of directors, where those
directors and executives shall be excluded from decision making
involving transactions in which they have interests or are connected.
The corporate secretary is responsible for receiving reports from
directors and executives who disclose their interests and those of
their related parties to the chairman and the chairman of Audit
Committee. In 2010, there was no conflict of interest from directors
and executives reported to the board.

3. Roles of Stakeholders

Hana recognizes the rights of stakeholders as the board
believe that the respect of the legitimate expectations of all the
stakeholders should benefit all parties in the long run. We have the
guidelines to encourage active participation between corporation
and stakeholders as follows.

Shareholders

The company attempts to achieve growth in earnings for
shareholders over the long term. Board members and executive
management shall be qualified for their positions and have a clear
understanding of their roles in corporate governance and exercise
sound business judgment in the best interest of the company and
shareholders. Our treatment toward shareholders shall comply with
the good corporate governance principles for the right and
equitable treatment of all shareholders. The disclosures shall be
made on a consistent basis, completely and truthfully in regards
to the status of the company, its operating results, financial standing,
accounts and other reports. The company has followed the best
practices in conducting the annual ordinary general meeting of
shareholders. In 2010, the company was rated “excellent” in the
assessment of the annual general meetings of shareholders by the
Office of the SEC and the Thai Investors Association.

Customers

Hana places the highest value on our customers. The
company aims to meet or exceed our customers’ expectation for
product quality, delivery, reliability, and competitive prices. There
is a Customer Service Department available for dealing with
customers and to monitor progress of our commitments.

The Company safeguards the tangible and intellectual
property of those with whom we do business, which may be used
in fulfilling work assignments, and we will comply with all regulations
or contractual requirements governing the use of such property.

weansldnindauynisznis
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Business Partners, Business Competitors and Creditors
Hana promotes fair and open competition and aims at
developing and securing long term relationship with suppliers and

contractors. Material, product and service purchases will be
considered for the quality of materials, products and services in
accordance with the respective product requirements. The
company abides by its obligations to all creditors. The board of
directors, management and employees are expected to exercise
diligence in their duties with all business partners including
creditors. The company conducts business fairly and shall not
deceive, discredit or use unethical means to gain advantage from
the company’s business competitors.

All directors and employees will not be influenced by gifts or
favors of any kind from our suppliers or other business partners.
The Company expects each employee to exercise reasonable
judgment and discretion in accepting any gratuity or gift offered
to the employee in connection with employment at Hana. All
employees must conform to existing policy regarding Gift & Gratuity
Policies and Procedures.
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Employees

The company is dedicated to the achievement of equality of
opportunity for all of its employees. All employees will be employed
solely according to their ability to meet the position requirements.
The company’s disciplinary policies and procedures is defined and
communicated to employees. There is to be no harsh orinhumane
treatment. Compensation paid to employees is complied with all
applicable wage laws, including those relating to minimum wages,
overtime hours, and legally mandated benefits. The company has
provided various welfare programs for employees such as provident
funds, health benefits, children educational assistance for lower-
pay employees, meal allowance, group life insurance, employee
long service award program, etc. A Career Path Development
Program is provided to selected employees for learning and
development opportunities to grow.

We provide the safe workplace that is to control the safety
and health hazards to the acceptable levels and on-going safety
training has been provided whereas the annual physical check-up
to over 8,000 employees has been arranged in Y2010. The company
continued to provide a flu shot (influenza vaccine) to our employees
so that their immune system will be able to fight the flu better and
get lower sickness.
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Communities, Society and Environment

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. has the Safety,
Occupation Health, Environmental and Social & Labour
Accountability Policy to comply with the safety and environmental
laws prescribed by the Labour and Social Welfare Ministry, the
Industrial Ministry, and the announcement of the Industrial Estate
Authority of Thailand and other related laws for the safety good
health and hygiene of its employees as well as the subcontractors,
vendors, suppliers and the customers with least impact to the
environment and make continuous improvement for following”:-

1. Conserve natural resources and energy effectively to
prevent pollution and minimize generation of all wastes.

2. Provide the safe and proper workplace / equipment in
order to prevent any accident and incident from occurrence.

3. Strictly comply to legal and other regulations, Standard
Requirements of Thai Labour Standard, labour law and provide full
support to customer’s requirements with regard to occupational
health, safety, environment, including social and labour
accountability

In 2010, we participated in the Clean Technology Program
with Chiang Mai University to support students in applying clean
technologies for energy saving. As a result, the company
successfully made the electrical saving and water saving from the
cleaning system approximately 274,800 Baht per year starting
since June 2010.

Furthermore, in 2010 we initiated the project “Reduce Waste,
Create Value and Reduce Global Warming” through the recycled
handmade contest of scrap material with the goal to encourage
our employees to explore positive ways to change their relationship
to the environment, while expressing their inspiration of innovation
and brainstorming abilities among colleague.
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32 / Name AR / Position

FautidhanisRu
Chief Financial Officer

I aa = I'd
wemasisua wWall nas
Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

1.8, 37201 paNl
Ms. Jirapa Kongmanee

WUNYNITLFEN
Corporate Secretary

WA, yua Aasing
Ms. Penpimol Kotchabhakdi

Corporate Affairs Officer

A-LNA / E-mail address

terry@hanabk.th.com
jirapak@hanabk.th.com

penpimol_k@hanabk.th.com

Y=Y

Government Authorities and Associated Organizations

Hana requires its executive, directors and employees to
understand and abide by those laws, regulations, policies, and
procedures that applicable to them in the performance of their job
duties.

Channel of Complaints

Hana provides channels for stakeholders to communicate
any concerns aboutillegal or any complaints regarding to activities
or conduct of the company or any of its staff or business partners
relating to the company. Stakeholders can report such complaint
or concern in good faith directly to the Audit Committee of the
board of directors. The procedure for handling complaints
(Whistleblower Policy) has been established and published in the
company’s website. In addition, the suggestion/compliant box is
available at each Hana location to receive anonymous and
confidential complaints from employees to report any suspected
fraud, illegal conduct or any suggestion to the independent director.

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company ensures timely disclosure of all material matters
and all relevant information is reported to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand in accordance with the disclosure requirements. It is
critical to have as much information as can be available so that
continuous evaluation of investment performance may be
conducted. The company will make the effort to disclose information
broadly and proactively through channels of communication that
allow equal access to market participants. New information that
is likely to materially influence the valuation of the company’s shares
shall be disclosed to the market immediately through the SET’s
system and the company’s website. In 2010, there was no violation
that Hana breached the disclosure rules and regulations. The
financial reports have been disclosed in a timely manner during
the past years.

The company has not set up the Investor Relations
Department, but the company’s executive directors are actively
involved in the role of investor relations on a continuous basis as
the company believes that their ability to deliver confident and clear
presentation is as important a skill as technical and managerial
capabilities. The Corporate Affairs Department is also available
to provide basic information upon request. The company usually
arranges an analyst meeting each quarter to inform the investor
community of the financial result and also clarify all inquiries from
Institutional Investors, Fund Managers and analysts who attend
the meeting. In 2010, the company conducted analyst meetings
four times and participated with SET’s Opportunity Day program
two times to provide information about the past quarters’
performance to the interested persons. Additionally, company visits
by interested analysts are also welcome and can be arranged by
appointment. All investors can access the company’s financial
information through the SET's Public disclosure system and at
company’s website: http://www.hanagroup.com, or contact to
following person.

TnsANY / Phone number ns&15 / Fax number

02-5511297 ext. 116 02-5511299
02-5511297 ext. 117 02-5511299
02-5511297 ext. 226 02-5511299
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5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The board of directors consists of 6 directors which are 3
executive directors and 3 independent directors. The chairman of
the board is not the same person who holds the Chief Executive
Officer position and the chairman is an independent director. The
board has considered that the current the board structure is suitable
as comparing to authority and responsibility for managing the
company’s business. Executive Directors are professional and
gaining high experiences in business management. Directors who
are non-executives have relevant knowledge and are skillful in
various fields of business. All directors devote their time to the serve
the board especially for making decisions significant to the
company’s interests. The board delegates to the executive
committee the authority and responsibility for managing the
company’s day-to-day business. The company’s business is
managed under the direction of the board of directors. The board’s
role is to establish policies for business and management strategies,
corporate governance policy which the board evaluates those
policies annually, the code of conduct, and monitor managerial
performance. The board has approved the separation of duties
and authorization of Executive Committee and management such
as approval limits of day-to-day operational expenses. However,
such authorization shall not include that where the grantee can
approve the transaction of which he or she is a person who might
have any conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiaries
regarding such transaction.

The board of directors gives emphasis on the transparency
of director nomination. The company has the policy to give the
rightto shareholders to propose appropriate candidates for election
to the board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for review
of the qualification and performance of the candidates or those
directors who retired by rotation. In 2010, there was no proposal
for candidates sent by shareholders to the Nomination Committee
to review. Therefore, the board considered those directors who
retired by rotation and which the board considers based on their
qualification, working experiences, previous year performances,
willingness and time devoted to the board are suitable to be
considered for re-election.

Corporate Governance

To ensure that the board includes such directors who can
exercise their best judgment, all independent directors shall be
affirmatively determined that such director meets the requirement
set by the Securities Exchange of Commission (SEC). In particular,
an independent director is a director who:

1) Holds shares less than 1% of the total shares eligible to
vote of the company, subsidiaries, associates, or controlling parties,
including the shares held by the related parties of an independent
director

2) Whois not an executive director, employee, or consultant
who receives remuneration from the company or any of its
subsidiaries, who is also neither a controlling person of the company
or subsidiaries nor a related person at least for the past two years

3) Is not the person who has relationship by means of
descent or legal registration as father, mother, spouse, brothers
and sisters, and children, nor being spouse of daughters and sons
of management, major shareholders, controlling party/person who
is in the process of nomination to be the management or controlling
person of the company or its subsidiary. This also includes normal
business transactions, rent or lease of fixed assets, financial
assistance, loan granting or receiving, guarantee, or other related
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transactions obliged the company or its contractual party for the
liability to pay the other party that is accounting from 3% of net
tangible assets of the company or twenty million baht whichever
is lower.

4) Have no or never have business relationship with the
company, subsidiaries, associates, or related person that deprives
such independence nor being a major shareholder, executive
director, management of related person who has business with the
company, associate and subsidiary unless the foregoing status
ended at least two years

5) Is not or has never been the auditor of the company,
subsidiaries, associates, major shareholders, or controlling person,
nor being a major shareholder, controlling person, or partner of
the auditing firm unless the foregoing status ended at least two
years

6) Is not or has never been the professional service provider,
nor legal or financial advisor with receive service fee more than
two million baht per year from the company, subsidiaries,
associates, major shareholders, or controlling person, and is not
a major shareholder, controlling person, or partner of the above
mentioned service firms unless the foregoing status ended at least
two years

7) Is not the director who is nominated to be the representative
of directors of the company, major shareholder, or any other
shareholder related to the major shareholders

8) Does not conduct the same business and compete
business with the company or subsidiary, nor being a business
partner or executive director, paid employee or hold more than 1%
of voting shares from other companies which have the same
business and compete with the company

9) Has no other conditions that unable to exercise
independent opinion regarding the business operation of the
company

Committee

The board of directors has established committees to carry
out various critical responsibilities. There are four sub-committees:
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Risk Management Committee.

The board promotes non-executive directors to have a
separate meeting in absence of management as determined by
the non-executive directors as to encourage more open discussion
without management present.

Conflict of Interests and Related Party Transaction

The fiduciary duty of directors is to exercise their business
judgment to act in a manner that they reasonably believe to be the
best interests of the company. They also are expected to avoid
any action that conflicts with any interest of the company or that
gives the appearance of a conflict. Each director’'s other
relationships, including business and family may occasionally give
rise to the perception that the individual has a material, personal
interest on a particular issue involving the company. It is the
company policy that the Board and Audit Committee shall determine
on a case-by-case basis whether a conflict of interest actually exists
and takes appropriate steps to identify such potential conflicts.

Under the Note for, Related Party Transactions, of the
consolidated financial statements discloses relevant detail of related
party transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries.
The majority of the related party transactions were entered into in
the normal course of business by the company and by definition
these cannot give rise to a conflict of interest. The only transaction
involving an associated company is a lease of land by the company
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from Omac Limited. The terms of this lease appear to be arms
length normal commercial terms in view of their being consistent
with the lease terms paid for the same property by Omac Limited
to a third party.

Corporate Governance

Controlling system and Internal Audit

The board of directors is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the internal control system. In 2010, the board has
performed self-assessment to evaluate the internal control system
by applying the control assessment criteria from the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The major parts of organizational control
and environment, risk management, management control activities,
information and communication and monitoring are measured.
There is an internal audit department which directly reports to Audit
Committee to monitor the company’s compliance with the
established systems. The board of directors review the
effectiveness of internal controls with the internal auditors and
management. The Risk Management Committee has been
appointed to ensure implementation of the risk management policy
to be monitored and limited overall risks at an acceptable level.

The board believes that existing internal control systems are
achieving their objectives and that they provide reasonable
assurance concerning the accuracy of financial statements, the
safeguard of assets against loss or unauthorized use, and the
assurance of transactions that are executed consistent with
company policies and procedures.

Business Ethics

The board of directors attempts to operate its worldwide
business in accordance with the highest ethical standards and
relevant laws. The company expects and requires that its directors,
officers and employees perform their duties with the highest
standards of integrity in the conduct of business. Therefore,
corporate code of conduct has been written as the company policy
and procedure in order to provide the general guidance for those
in recognizing and resolving ethical and legal issues while
conducting the company’s business. The company’s extract of the
written code of conduct is available on the company website. All
directors and employees are notified and encouraged to comply
with the set codes. The compliance to the code of conduct is
regularly monitored by senior management. The company shall
not tolerate any illegal or unethical acts. Anyone violating the code
of conduct will be disciplined, which may include termination of
employment. Channels of complaint are also opened to all
employees.

Board of Directors’ Meetings

The total number of directors attending the meeting must be
no less than one half of the total number of directors to constitute
aquorum. In 2010, the company had four meetings. The chairman
of the board and CEO set the agenda of meetings of the board.
Any director may suggest agenda items and may raise at meetings
other matters that they consider importance of discussion.
Information and data for the board’s understanding of the business
to be discussed at meetings are distributed in advance of meetings,
to the extent practicable. To prepare for meetings, directors are
responsible for reviewing the materials that are sent to them in
advance. Ifthere are additional inquiries, the directors can contact
the company secretary. At the board meeting, ample time is
scheduled to allow full discussion of important matters. Management
presentations are scheduled to permit an appropriate portion of
board meeting time to be available for discussion and comments.
The minutes of board of directors meeting are properly made and
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contain key facts such as the timing of start and finish, name of
directors present and absent, summary of items of major discussion
and resolutions, the minute taker and certifier. The minutes are
maintained at the company’s head office and cannot be edited
without prior consent of the board approval.

Remuneration for Directors

The company provides the remuneration to the independent
directors while the executive directors receive the remuneration
as the role of employees of the company. Therefore, the company
has not established the Remuneration Committee as the board
considers and reviews the remuneration of the independent
directors by the whole board. The company provides the
remuneration to the independent directors in forms of meeting
allowances and bonus of which the rates are up to the responsibilities
of the members. The remuneration for directors has been compared
with the rate of the same industry and the structure of the
remuneration of the company. The total remuneration of directors
had been approved by shareholders from the annual shareholders’
meeting on 30 April 2010.

?')Emzl,@ﬂmmm@uuwwmﬂimmmﬂmzlui’)z/yﬂmv JJﬁNu/ Individual disclosure of remuneration for the Board is as follows.

"h‘ﬂ / Name ALY / Position

1. WetTty T NUnIENs 1J52871UN990N"T, NIINNTTRATY, UTLEIUNITNNNIAIIRADL
Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn

2. Wiemanall mwaunlsyans NIIUNNIBATY, NITNNITATIAADL, UTTHIUNITNNNIAIINN
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi
3, wennfAu 1Hulu aasu NITNNNTBATY, NITUNITAIIAADL, NITNNNTATINN
Mr. Martin Enno Horn

4, WelFnsn aam §u
Mr. Richard David Han

ﬂT?EJﬂ’]i‘U?‘M’W?, NTTINNITATINN
Executive Director, Nomination Committee

NIINNITLINNT
Executive Director

5. UNeAUdU 39 7 g8l
Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

N9INNIILEMT
Executive Director

6. wiennafisus Aad Haf
Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

UNEILUR / Remark
nimmsmmi - (6) ”Lmum"]muLmu‘lugm:wﬁmmmmu?ﬁw
Executive Directors named (4)

AMaUIINUWUSHNS

NUTIANRRLULNULBNELEFNIT - LFEMRAsUINdIAIme LY
Hudmssiasaunsnmge qela warinewineundlszaunisal
WAZAINATNTD AFRLLNUELTMNTUsznau s Runeuwaziuia
lugtuuuiRaaiuninaueestdim Tnaiasanainuanisiianm
AINLNLIMNTIN N19unTesypna ANdudeanuazaaniy
HaTaL AL IR uAAZLAAS

dszianAimauunu / Type of remuneration
Suipau / Salary

Tutia / Bonus

Lﬁ»ﬂﬂi:ﬂm / Board Allowance

994 / Total

ANRELLNLELENNT 4 viumuanseil uAneuunuaesdiTsausaded

(4) - (6) wazwEA i 1 ganniavialuaaddasnunuaiun a1nu

fmaulnudu

ﬂmwumammww = Lﬂumuuuwm‘llﬂNmim@ﬂivimu
m@uLmumwLLN@Q‘L@’Wmmmmmwunmu faziladaAnaansdl
ReTam N1 a1een viTainBuueny LFEnaasunuliludng
faeay 3 - 7.5 109RUAD1Y mwnu@anummmwmmunumw

Lﬁﬂﬂimju (u7n) / Meeting Allowance (Baht) Tula (1) / Bonus (Baht)

Chairman of Board, Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee

Independent Director,Audit Committee, Chairman of Nomination Committee

510,000 170,000
275,000 100,000
275,000 100,000

Independent Director, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee

- (6) receive the remuneration as the company’s management/employees.

Remuneration for executives

Basis of key executive remuneration — The Company is to
ensure that executive remuneration enhance our ability to attract,
retain and motivate competent and experience staff. Remuneration
of executives comprises of base salary and bonus which are
basically the same standard as employees. The performance-
based has been recognized for the legitimate difference in roles,
individual contribution, complexity and responsibility of the position

they hold.

AU Amount
13,980,627
6,534,500

20,515,127

The remuneration of 4 executive managements presented
below includes the executive directors named (4) — (6) and Mr. WK
Chow, General Manager, Lamphun Plant.

Other Remuneration:

There is a provident fund which is a part of the incentive
programs to offer management and employees a secure income
in the case of death, disability, resignation or retirement. The
company contributes at the rate of 3 - 7.5 percent of their salaries

depending on the length of year service with the company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Hana recognizes that our long-term success depends on
our ability to manage operations soundly and efficiently in an
increasingly complex environment, and to make contribution to
society through creating value for our stakeholders. Therefore, we
aim to ensure that the company operates in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner.

Educational Support

We contribute and provide support with the education for
the student and communities. To create mutually beneficial
relationships between students and local businesses, in Y2010
Hana provides educational support in the following.

Internship program

Hana recognizes the importance of connecting students’
academic training with manufacturing workplace. We continuously
provide the general internship and cooperative education programs
with the collaboration among colleges and universities in Thailand
and overseas for example, Chulalongkorn University, Sirindhorn
International Institute of Technology, Thammasat University,
Mahidol University, Kasetsart University, Suranaree University of
Technology, King Mongkut’s University of Technology North
Bangkok, Donmaung Technical College and City University of Hong
Kong, etc.
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Hana applies the competency-based approach for the
recruitment and training to match students with the job
competencies. Our Internship Program is designed to give students
an opportunity to use their knowledge and skills in an actual work
situation. It also allows them to investigate career opportunities
and learn about their career interests and abilities. We provide
specific projects assignment with the guidance of professional
expertise in company and teachers in the university. Meanwhile,
the mentors have access to the new concepts and ideas through
the interns and exchange new technical knowledge with the

students and professors through the projects assignment.

Support students from poor families

Educational funds raised by Hana JX to help support the
children of poor families in nearby communities so that they could
afford to pay for the school fees and other related costs, thereby
alleviating the parents’ financial burden.

The program of helping children of poor families to complete
their tertiary education started during the time when we were located
at Shanghai. Then 14 needed students benefit from the program
and eventually graduated from University and found well-paying
jobs. Hana JiaXing continued this unique program when the factory
was moved from Shanghai to Jiaxing in 2006. Right now nine
students are still receiving help from us (three in middle school

and six in University).

Staff Training and Development Program

One of the best ways to motivate and retain the individuals
in the workforce is Training and People Development. When the
employees increase knowledge, develop new skills and bring the
new ideas, it will enhance the competitive advantage to the
organization.

Hana offers the various kinds of training programs in all levels
of employees; skilled operators — 5S, QCC. Hana has received the
QCC Prizes from the Technology Promotion Association (Thailand-
Japan) since Y2007. In Year 2010, Mr. Wing Keung Chow, V.P. &

s1901uUs:91U 2553 @ usen g1un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (UKBU)
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A mFuntdnauaramatiauazlteaivayu anuilddn
11lsunsu Professional Technical Competency-based Development
(TCBD), NsHNausuMImumATALAZNNILEWNS L NANgATaNIE
NNFIUNALA NANGRININAIULETNIS 1Y Hana Culture, The
Effective Application of Lean Manufacturing, Finance and Operating
Application, Creative Problem Solving and Decision Making
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GM of Hana Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (Lamphun plant) received
QCC Promoter Award for Top Management, “Flash Memory” QCC
Team Members from Hana Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (Lamphun
Plant) received Popular Vote Award. “Yellow Wave” QCC Team
Members of Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd received Silver
Prize of Service QCC Prize and the facilitator received QCC
Facilitator Award.

For technical and supporting staff — Professional Technical
Competency-based Development (TCBD) Program, Technical and
Management Training e.g. Technical Subjects, Hana Culture, The
Effective Application of Lean Manufacturing, Finance and Operating
Application, Creative Problem Solving and Decision Making. In
addition to training programs, we also provide a wide range of the
development program for our employees; Multi-skills Program,
Jobs Rotation Program, Career Path Development Program, Talent
Management Program and Succession Planning Program.

We respect and value everyone’s contribution so we continue
to attract and retain our employees and talent staff to support our

organization for the long-term growth and sustainability.
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Corporate Culture Development

Corporate culture development has always been a
management focus and to encourage employees to uphold the
important concept of maintaining good physical and mental health
for their work life so that they are able to grow personally and in
the process, contribute towards the continuous growth of the
company.

To inculcate a sense of Hana family and team spirit among
employees, Hana management strongly supported the Recreational
and Welfare Committee to organize various social and cultural
activities throughout the year. Our employees participated and
enjoyed the activities “Happy Hearth, Happy Work, and Happy
Place”, which range from Loy Kratong festival, Walk Rally and
Adventure, Singing Contest, Food Carnivals, Fun Fare, and several
Sports Activities.
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Social contribution

The recent severe flooding in Ayutthaya province caused our
employees to be the flood victims. Hana Ayutthaya immediately
disbursed flood relief funds to 350 employees amounting to Baht
783,000.

Hana Lamphun has continued blood donation program every
3 months, and received an impressive response from our
employees with over 600 employees participated in the blood
donation. Due to the effects from natural disasters, our employees
conducted the voluntary camp in local communities to help
survivors stay alive and begin to rebuild their lives. Meanwhile, the
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company supported the local communities through various
activities such as participated with Lamphun Safety Club, Mayday
and International Female Day as well as Stop Alcohol Program
conducted by Lamphun Province Office, Children Day arranged
by NRIE and Banklang Municipal, etc.

Hana JX's management and employees donated a total of
RMB 95,600 to the victims of the massive earthquake happened
to Western China’s YuShu region on April 24, 2010.

On China’s Children day, the culture team members visited
an orphanage to show their love and support as well as presented
gifts to the boys and girls to celebrate this memorable day with
them.
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Environmental Management

Hana recognizes the importance of a clean and green
environment for the mutual benefit of our employees, the global
community and future generations. We are committed to integrate
environmentally friendly practices into all aspects of our daily
activities necessitated by our business in following guidelines:

1. have effective programs to minimize adverse
environmental impact through conservation of resources (natural
and processed) and materials

2. administer and establish responsible methods for the use
and disposal of hazardous substances to prevent pollution

3. nurture ourenvironmentthrough continuous improvements,
in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations

4. advocate open communication with our employees,
customers, suppliers, and the local community on the importance
of good environmental protection

To reduce carbon emission and conserve energy, we have
replaced fluorescent lamps in the factory with environmental friendly
lamps. This reduced the electricity consumption by about 350kKWH
per year. We installed variable speed drive (VSD) for Scrubber
Blowers, check and repair the leakage of compressed air pipes
which resulted in the saving of over 3M Baht per year. For water
saving, we recycle water through various systems such as reforming
the RO Water Supply System for Deflash, reusing discharge hot
water to heat up DI water supply to Cleaning Machines, recycling
discharge hot water from Cleaning Machine to use in Cooling
Tower, recycling back wash water from Softener Unit used in
Cooling Tower, etc. In year 2011, we will activate more activities
to reduce electricity and water consumption as well as gas usage.
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of Hana Microelectronics Public
Company Limited is composed of three independent directors.
Members of the Committee meet the qualification and the scope
of work is in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

In performing its oversight responsibilities, the Committee
held 4 meetings during 2010. The meeting attendance of each
committee is as follows.

v

AuaTsndlszgu / Meeting Attendance

497 4 A%
4 of 4 times

4970 4 A%
4 of 4 times

4870 4 A3
4 of 4 times

The Committee reviewed and discussed with the independent
and internal auditors of the scope and results of their examinations
including internal control, audit and financial reporting matters. The
Audit Committee also held regular discussions with the Board of
Directors regarding the preparation of interim and annual financial
statements and the review of management and operational systems
for internal control and legal compliance. The related party
transaction has been reviewed in addition to the requirement that
the directors and management of the Company disclosed on an
annual basis for any related party transactions that may lead to
potential conflict of interest situations.

The external and internal auditors have full and free access
to the Audit Committee. The Committee has recommended to the
Board of Directors the suitable re-appointment of the independent
auditors of Ernst and Young Bangkok Office Limited for the financial
year ending December 31, 2011.

The Audit Committee concludes its satisfaction with the
accuracy, completeness and creditability of 2010 financial
statements’ preparation and reporting, the adequacy of internal
control systems and the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. There is no transaction that may lead to conflict of
interests. As a result, the Audit Committee has no particular matter
to draw to the attention of shareholders.

M paa st n(

Bancha Tarnprakorn
Chairman of Audit Committee
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The Nomination Committee consists of three directors, of
which two are the independent directors. In 2010, the company
had one meeting and all committee members attended the meeting.
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the candidates on the
basis of knowledge, skill, experience as well as vision and attitude
to match with the Company’s requirement.

In respect of the candidate nominations for new director
appointments in 2010, the Company promoted the shareholders’
right to propose candidates for election to the board. The policies
and procedures to allow shareholders to propose candidates for
the election of the board are posted on the Company’s website.
However, there were no shareholders proposed candidates to the
Committee for review in previous year. Therefore, the Nomination
Committee reviewed those directors whose term expired by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association. The
Committee has considered that those directors potentially continue
to make further contribution to the board and the Company.

The Nomination Committee believes the candidate
nomination for director appointment process is proper and
transparent and in compliance of its charter.

ﬂ“’ff Y =%

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi
Chairman of Nomination Committee

s19v1uUs:91U 2553 @ uSen @un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (LKBU)




ﬂ']lUSOU[Uaﬂ']Sﬂ']lUU\)']UU('J\)ﬂaUEﬂU'l

m"Lmmnmimwmﬂ@mmwmm mem@ﬂm 26 ile
Lﬁﬂuﬂm'aﬂ TaeTl 2553 419 17.0 Wudnuum Wefieuiut 2552
i 135 Auduun dousaldanniseelugdanaluivEaaniy
iaidugesay 36 1T 535 mummmwﬁ Q1N 392 AuiTenyansy
10 2552 Flsannnssniiinens Wsdudesas 34 winf 2,473 1y
UM AN 1,848 muu’mluﬂ 2552 finlsannnisaiinaulugy [
Wiseoyaniy aduSenas 45 Wiy 78 fuiianyanigain 54 §1u
wittioyaniy utl 2552

Ms3lAs1:AwansALuLIUALAULY

ns3ias:risela

7l 2553 mﬂmmnmamammu mmmmmmmimmlum
@WﬂﬂWQVQHQMLﬂiHﬁﬂ@V}Lﬂﬂ"mﬂuﬂ 2551-2552 eLummmfmmmﬂu
iﬂmmNummmmmwmumﬂm 36 ﬂﬂmmﬂlu@ﬂmmmuqumu
mmﬂﬂm 26 Lummm\mmmLw\ammm@ﬂm 8 TnaARuLse
Lmﬂm@mﬁ@w 31.73 UM Waauny 34.34 umnlud 2552 218
mmmﬂauumwLmu‘imuamm@Lum‘l,ul,l,mvimmm AneRausn
mmﬂ 2552 @um@ﬂmmmm 37 2553 urgananelulnInnadi 4 an
mLummnmmmmmimm@wmﬂqummﬂummmmm\iﬂ@wﬂ
2553

7 2553 gapngveiitaulszney IC Anfatunindesas
64 lugi Gumn@m?ﬂmmm"ﬁ (Gatiaz 51 Iuiﬂmmﬁumw) MUY
WAR IC mfammmmmu‘immqLmLmNmmﬁmnmmﬂ 2553 fiagl
nsiiulnesnasie finsaneiusnaet 2552 auflasunad 3
2553

1 2553 ﬂfavjﬁugﬂm’awmﬂmumammﬁmﬁmeﬁ IC ﬁf«ﬁ“ﬂlwgm
wizunsAzagsenNauFanas 62 luglanaRuvzanyansy (W
Faear 50 Tugiluesituuim) wazmineuifesAnd ﬂsvmmu
Waausanay 75 (meuiﬂﬂ@" 63 Tugtresduum) senuneves
VNN LERANARATL IC Wi uSesas 16 (fndufesas 10 Tugd
9093uum) Tursmdeediile fufuaswsnaed 2553

F;I’am"mtl‘ﬂﬂ\‘mﬂ']mﬁuiﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬂt‘ﬂiﬁﬂ'&ﬂ 2553 Lﬁﬁu%ﬂa@;
30 Tugtlanauwisunyansy (Ruaufesas 17 lugJuuim) e
L‘Vlﬂ“l_lﬂ‘i_l‘ﬂ 25521 mam?mmuwumwmmmwmmmmwumu
muifam 21 (memﬂmvﬂmﬂuumw) Lazmieauiiieads
Fafindusenay 53 (LWM"]J‘LL?@F;I@“’M 1u@ﬂmumm) HRATNEURIVIUIE
qwu”l,u‘[m'm@ﬂ‘tmiumiumwmmmﬂ Waaudeaas 6 (Faaay 0 lu
el STV anneRsusnaedt 2553

1] 2553 sanrneeIieLsTna LA AN et (CPG)
anadEREAz 15 (Anadiaeaz 21 Tugtlduum) iesannlndtlnfianis
mﬂwuqmﬁmmmsluﬂ 2557 §oE8A1NEYBNEN lulmspanasd
wilulad (HMT) indudenas 130 (fisduleuas 11 9 Tugt{uum)
L*‘fimmﬂﬂﬁilﬁu‘[m'aﬂwLL*ﬁ\iLmi'quaL@Wﬁzqiﬁqﬁ']ugﬂmmﬂuim

AamatdniugUnsniaiadressruuinsanuiA
/ O

1195U1811a:N1SI1AS: AUV gYANIS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overall Group Performance

Hana Microelectronics Group ‘Hana’ Sales Revenue
increased 26% year on year, to THB 17.0 billion in year 2010 from
THB 13.5 billion in year 2009. Sales Revenue in USD terms
increased 36% to USD 535m in 2010 from USD 392m in 2009.
Operating Profits increased 34% to THB 2,473m Baht in 2010 from
THB 1,848m in 2009. Operating profits increased 45% in USD
terms to USD 78m in 2010 and USD 54m in 2009.

Past Performance Analysis

Revenue Analysis

Sales were sharply higher in 2010 as the global economy
recovered from the recession in 2008/2009. Whilst USD sales
increased by 36%, in Baht terms sales increased by 26% due to
the 8% stronger Thai baht in 2010 at THB/USD 31.73 compared
to THB/USD 34.34 in 2009. Group Sales grew continually each
quarter from the first half of 2009 until the end of Q3 2010. Sales
in Q4 2010 declined as the semiconductor cycle matured towards
the end of 2010.

In 2010 IC assembly sales rebounded with 64% in USD terms
[+51% in THB terms]. IC divisions Sales grew strongly to record
levels in 2010, with growth continuing quarterly from the first half
of 2009 until Q3 2010.

For 2010, the IC division in AYT sales increased 62% [+50%
in THB terms], and increased 75% [+63% in THB terms] for the IC
division in JXG.The IC divisions USD revenues were up 16% [+10%
in THB terms] in the second half of 2010 compared to the first half
of 2010.The Microelectronics divisions’ sales revenues increased
30% [+17% THB]in 2010 over 2009. The microelectronics operation
in Lamphun increased 21% [+9% in THB terms] and JXG by 53%
[+41% in THB terms] for 2010. Microelectronics divisions USD
sales in the second half of 2010 increased by 6% [0% in THB
terms] from the first half of 2010.

CPG sales fell 15% [-21% THB] in 2010 due to the move
towards closure in 2014. Hana Microdisplay Technologies “HMT”,
sales increased 139% [+119% THB] for the year with the growth
mainly from higher microdisplay sales for optical telecom switch
components. The annual sales split was:

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ® ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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37% 43% 37%

17% 15% 18%

5% 8% 1%

35% 29% 29%

5% 4% 4%

1% 1% 1%

100% 100% 100%

Gross Profit / Cost of Sales Analysis and Sales and

Administration Analysist
The Gross Profit margin was 17% in 2010 down 2% from 19%
in 2009 due the 8% stronger Baht and CNY.

Operating Profit Analysis

Operating profit margin increased 1% in 2010 to 15% from
14% in 2009 due to lower SGA expenses in 2010 offsetting the
lower gross margin. SGA expenses decreased by THB 87m to 4%
of sales revenue in 2010 from 6% of sales revenue in 2009 as a
result of reversals in 2010 of doubtful debt provisions made in 2009.

Net Profit margin before exceptional items increased in 2010
from 2009 by 1% to 16% (due to foreign exchange gains from
hedging of the THB).
2008. Income taxation remained reduced to 3% in 2010 due to

2009 margin had increased from 13% in

lower profit at CPG division and higher BOI sales revenues from at
5-7% of Net Profit before tax for previous two years. EBITDA margin
was similar in 2010 to 2009 at 21% rising slightly by 1% from 19%
in 2008.

Payout Analysis

The company paid dividends per share of THB 1.30 in 2008
from the profits of 2007, THB 1.20 in 2009 from the profits of 2008
and THB 1.40in 2010 from the profits of 2009 being 51%, 57% and
55% dividend payout of net profits before exceptional items
respectively.

The final dividends are normally announced in the board
meeting in February of the following year for approval in the annual
general meeting in April paid out in May.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Status

The group currently has no interest bearing debt. Cash and
short term investments at the 31st December 2010 were THB 5.0
billion, 2009 THB 6.0 billion and THB 4.7 billion in 2008.

Asset Quality

Accounts Receivable

Most of customers are well known and have good reputation
in the IC, and electronics industry. Provision is made of amounts
outstanding over 90 days and amounts which the management
believe may be doubtful.

2553 2552 2551
2,423,065 2,281,059 1,514,771
8,957 9,382 30,274
2,782 3,266 7,013
0 5,768 1,266
2,434,803 2,299,475 1,553,325
-3,240 6,415 -13,052
2,431,564 2,293,060 1,540,272

Inventory

In general, Hana’s production is based on clients’ order,
consequently, the majority of inventory are raw materials,
expendable tools and work in process with little finished goods
pending for customer delivery. The group companies normally
write-off out-of-date inventory, and make provision for aged
inventory and depletion in the value of fixed assets, if material, each
quarter. Inventory days were 81 days in 2010, 58 days in 2009 and
59 days in 2008.

Liquidity

The group has THB 5.0 billion in cash and short term
investments with no interest bearing debt. Liquidity ratios are high
at approximately 3 times current liabilities. Operating Cashflow
continued to be strong in 2010 with EBITDA at THB 3.6 billion and
THB 2.9 billion in 2009 and THB 2.8 billion in 2008.

Cash and short term investments in 2010 decreased by THB
1.0 billion to THB 5.0 billion, due to dividend THB 1.1 billion, capital
expenditure THB 2.1 billion and a THB 1.4 billion increase in working
capital. The cash increase in 2009 from 2008 was THB 1.1 billion
after dividend THB 1.0 billion and capital expenditure THB 0.8
billion and a THB 0.2 billion reduction in working capital.
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The cash increase in 2008 was THB 1.3 billion due to the
THB 0.5 billion reduction in working capital from the reduced
business in the last quarter of 2008.

Capital Expenditure

Net Capital Expenditure was THB 1,976m in 2010, THB 754m
in 2009 and THB 1,049m in 2008. Capital Expenditure was higher
in 2010 due to the increased demand in from Q409 through Q410.
Generally, capital expenditure for production equipment will follow
the increase in sales, particularly in the IC division. However, there
Plant
expansion will depend on the current building utilisation and lead

is a 3 to 6 month time lag due to the ordering lead time.

time to construct new plant or expand in an existing plant.

Source of Financial Capital

As the group as no interest bearing debt and operating
working capital is positive the groups funding is from the
shareholders equity.

Major Factors which could have an Impact on the

Company’s Performance

The company business is that of an electronics manufacturing
service company. As such, it manufactures products on behalf of
its customers for shipment to them or their customers. Therefore,
the company’s performance is mostly affected by its ability to win
and retain business from the existing and new customers. In turn,
customer demand is affected by world economic growth and the
customer’s sales growth.

As all the groups sales revenue are in foreign currency
(primarily USD) and USD currency costs are 60% percent of sales
revenues, the Group operating profit sensitivity to change in the
Thai Baht/USD and Chinese CNY/USD exchange rates is currently
about Baht 170m per quarter for every 10% change in the average
Baht/USD and CNY/USD rates (i.e
10%).

Out of the groups foreign exchange exposure, USD 50m is

. (1- 0.60) x Sales Revenue x

hedged, Foreign exchange contracts are used to buy THB and
Sell USD on a rolling 3 or 6 months basis. Whilst the book value of
the offshore companies are represented in foreign currency, the
effect of the change in the exchange rate is shown by the movement
of the foreign currency ‘Translation Adjustment’ in the shareholders
funds section of the balance sheet.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

There is no cash affect concerning its movement. The THB/
USD currency movements reflected the economic trends in
emerging markets and commodities during period. Whilst the
average rate for 2010 of THB/USD 31.73 was 8% stronger than the
THB/USD 34.3 in 2009 which was 3% weaker than THB/USD 33.4
average rate for 2008.

For Hana being an export group of companies the currency
movements cause volatility in earnings due to effects on the
operating margins and also inventory valuations (which the
management report each quarter when there is a material effect
on the profits) and margins.

Exceptional Items
None in 2010, 2009 or 2008.

AMaultnudINN1Sdaulrys/Audit’s remuneration

da1Fumgana/Company Fagaauiind/Auditor AAaLLIT/Fee

NUATINE LRGN
Kamontip Lertwitworatep

1519 8111 Tulnssdatnating S1im (1unw)

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 U

13N g wdAeuanAes (agaen) Ann ANANNE LAAINE TN

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd. Kamontip Lertwitworatep 820,000 LU
13EN @10 wHARUANIADT (NFUNN) A171A NNANNE L@AINE TN
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd. Kamontip Lertwitworatep 480,000 U

NANRALILNUANNNTAa LT T/ Total 3,300,000 1

AUSN1sdu /Non-audit fee

ANADLIUNULIRINULT MDY
Other Non-audit fee

a =
Uszinnaainuusmsan

Fovdingdng Tagaauind Aouiianely Aruiiaziag
Company Non-audit service Auditor Vuseuanetliud angluauan
Fee paid during the Fee paid
fiscal year in the future
15N g0 lulnsBidalng  nismsmeseuiedhglszacfianiznismmas 13 dndneu Budn waud €9 460,000 LM -
AAgd ANA (NANW) maumiﬂﬁiﬁmuﬁ@ﬂwmﬁm dugsn/  [nn
Hana Microelectronics Public Review the compliance with the conditions  Ernst & Young Office Limited
Co., Ltd. of the Board of Investment's certificate
U anwn wldeaudnieef  nisamaaauiednglsvasfianiznisnma  UsEn 41ineu @udn weud 69 420,000 LM -
(R88817) A171A asunsUiRsutenlazesing duai Qv
Hana Semiconductor Review the compliance with the conditions  Ernst & Young Office Limited
(Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd. of the Board of Investment's certificate
U3EN g0 lwdeeuinmed  nismmadeuiednglizasfianizniimms 15 dnnineu @udn waud 69 90,000 L% -
(Ng9NW) AR mumiﬂﬁﬁﬁmuﬁ@ﬂwmﬁm dudin/  Annin
Hana Semiconductor (BKK)  Review the compliance with the conditions  Ernst & Young Office Limited
Co., Ltd. of the Board of Investment’s certificate
SANANMALILNUAMTLNNULEN 7AW Total Non-audit fee 970,000 LN -
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Risk Factors

a) Business Risk

The largest risk management perceive are significant
changes within our major client base which may be brought about
due to any number of external factors such as a change in their
ownership, or a change in their product program. Whilst Hana’s
key strategy is to maintain a diverse base of customers with different
industry exposures; significant changes from any one of our major
clients can effect the group’s performance. Market conditions
resulting from changes in economic growth rates of economies will
also affect prices and demand for the company’s services.

b) Production Risk

The production risks are -

« changes in manufacturing technology making existing
equipment obsolete.

» a factory partial or whole destruction by fire, flood or
earthquake. Whilst The company has multiple factories there would
be a loss of customers and a period of months to years to install
new equipment and recover customer orders.

« the companies ability to source suitably skilled staff
sufficient direct labour.

» Material Supply Chain risks. Inability of our suppliers to
deliver materials on time and in accordance with specification.

¢) Management Risk

The company employs a number of expatriate management
in key positions. Whilst the company does not have any individual
staff or management who are key to the survival of the business,
loss of senior management and the company’s ability to replace
key management could affect the company’s market value and
business performance.

d) Financial Risk

Other risk factors which may affect the company are
exchange rates movements of the Thai Baht, political risk and
changes in interest rates and collection of receivables. However,
the company’s sales revenues and material costs are almost wholly
in USD which provides a natural hedge. Capital expenditure is also
in USD as the machines are mostly imported from the region.

As all the groups sales revenue are in foreign currency
(primarily USD) and USD currency costs are 60% percent of sales
revenues, the Group operating profit sensitivity to change in the
Thai Baht/USD and Chinese CNY/USD exchange rates is currently
about Baht 170m per quarter for every 10% change in the average
Baht/USD and CNY/USD rates (i.e
10%).

Out of the groups foreign exchange exposure, USD 50m is

. (1- 0.60) x Sales Revenue x

hedged, Foreign exchange contracts are used to buy THB and
Sell USD on a rolling 3 or 6 months basis.

s19v1uUs:91U 2553 @ uSen @un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (LKBU)




ﬂ@N‘LIT‘]:WM V]ﬂj‘“’LV]ﬂVLVl?;I QU@@@"NﬂQWNL@H\?T@\‘]@HVﬁWH@V]ﬁ
‘V]N@ﬂ’]‘ﬂﬁ‘vﬂ’]m 50 mummmwﬁ “ﬁ\ﬂﬂﬂﬂ’]ﬁ“i’l’]@mm’]”ﬁ'ﬂﬂ’mtﬂu
mﬁmaﬂ@wmﬂmwmmmu 50 mummmmmmwaﬁﬂ\mumm
LﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂlﬂiﬁLL@ﬂLﬂ@ﬂuﬂ\‘]ﬂ@’]’J ‘Emﬂ%mmimmmmmm 3-6
meau

‘LIi‘L“W]LL@W‘LI‘3"]:W1Hﬂﬂiﬂuﬂ’]ﬁ‘wﬁuﬂulﬂ”ljﬂlﬂﬂlﬁLﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬂL‘LI?_I N

¥

uumimmammumn@mﬁmﬂﬂLumn,w:um‘uu

n1o: ama'mnssuua NISuvdu

‘Luﬂ 2553 papiiAuLdsunsanaeadlifiosannnisus
andnpawsegialanuaziinsiulnlunaadialus Tnellasanad
4 anAmdsteniunusduiuneaulalastidalnsinauaziae
1w 1C Tutaned) iesannasudesnisfianas wiaetlszney
NARADTIaNIZatN (CPG) MasInatlafianng Lﬁ@qmmﬁ’mmwﬁﬁ
azunnadlull 2557 Lmvﬁ\iLLﬁdWﬂf;ﬂﬂﬂNTﬂiﬁ@LW@ET@ wuflunidag
muwmi’mimL@ﬂuﬂﬂiuﬂ@umw LAvneUIinsAL T Reting
wdaundsludl 2553 Lummnmmuimmmmm HARAUTT Optical
Switch @1%15U5UY Internet Traffic Management

L3 feasdnnagnaniinisnanalnenisiauananinsg
i qmm‘wmwmwmmmmmmmﬂummwu,suwu"l,m atne
u?mwu‘lmmmwsftmqmwmunumLmﬂumﬂmﬂfn@uwu
anuluny

ulsurgmsaonu

U3y HeunalunisdanisrauaNgLaLTEndasLAaz i
dredfjiEnnsrestidneesazagniglinisguazesdnnisiseu
il Teazmeunaniasnidunusevmihde e S
EANEANEULATNNILTINIAANITNNNNTRWAZgNAILANALATAY
dhetFnsTea iy Seasiinsfivsanlaganinssnm e

uwunslusuinn

13199 mmwma?mnmsn@mmuslu@qmmmwummumﬂmﬂ
JEXNRIRSTINGTCT m@mwwnﬂ'wmuuummwﬁlmuﬂiwmm 80-200
AL

U098nlIde0
Risk Factors

The company currently has no net interest bearing borrowings
and therefore is not negatively affected by potential interest rate
increases.

Industry and Competitive Condition

In 2010 the markets were strong throughout the year due to
the recovery from global financial crisis and growth in emerging
markets. The fourth quarter showed a softening in demand for the
Microelectronics and IC divisions at the yearend as the electronics
cycle matured. The CPG division continues to wind down due to
the lease expiry of its facility within 2014. Although a small portion
of group revenues, the Microdisplay division grew strongly in 2010
with the growth in the market for optical switches for internet traffic
management.

The company remains competitive by providing assemblies
to the quality level demanded by the customers and at a competitive
cost. The management believes that company maintains a
competitive cost structure equal or lower than the majority of its
competitors.

Investment policy

The company maintains full management control over each
of its subsidiaries. Operational management for each operating
subsidiary factory lies with the factory general manager reporting
to the company president. Capital expenditure and financial
management are controlled through the company’s corporate

management, which is overseen by the board of directors.

Future Projects in Plan

The company is looking to buy land in Lamphun for future
factory expansion. The land investment is expected to be THB
80m - THB 200m.
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities
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(WNE3TN5A LADA &)
(Mr. Richard David Han)
70917281UNIINNNT UseauLEmsLazsiantindnauiung
Executive Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and
integrity of financial statements and to make the timely disclosure
to investors. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Such
important information is adequately disclosed in the notes to
financial statement.

The maintenance of the internal control system is the
responsibility of the Board to reasonably assure that assets are
safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition and that the
accounting records are sufficiently reliable to permit the preparation
of financial statements that conform in all material respects with
generally accepted accounting principles.

The board of directors has appointed an Audit Committee.
The Committee meets during the year to review with management
and the auditors any significant accounting, internal control, and
auditing matters.

The Board is of the opinion that the financial statements of
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
for the year ended December 2010 are materially accurate,
complete, and reliable.

M I /\(

(1o NuneEne)
(Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn)
19L8IUATULNITNNNTLTEY
Chairman of the Board of Directors

s19v1uUs:91U 2553 @ uSen @un Tulasdiaalnsiing 91in (LBU)




SIENUIAERALTI S UAY IR
LAUBFARLTA UL
u3En 2w lalasdiaainsfiag 41fin (Nunw)

drwidnldnsaaaiunamu o fnm 31 funnAN 2553 WAy
2552 quninlsaanuIN \mmema*l,ﬂ@ﬂw,l,ﬂmmumm Aevuss
me‘mmvumLquammmwmﬂau@mautmrmuummﬂmmmwm
g1un Tulpsdidalnating a1in (HunTw) wazisEnsdes warldmngia
#BLNLNNTRWANZAANNTI99LTE 87N lulasaiaainsiing anrin
() faetuiu Teafiivsresiamadudfuilareusioanagn
FeduaraTudauaesteyaluaunisdumani doudanidudu
JFuRnTenlunITuanIAININARILNITRUAINAINRINHANIT
ATIAAALUAITIWLAN .

drmdnflFnmaaauaun1sRurestdindea uvtanilelusing

dszwadasnagluaunisdusn Wisvdeasinaaflaeaduning

0 AU 31 fuanAN 2553 anuautlsin 335 uunn visaAmly
fouas 2 10988ndUNINEIIN (2552: 231 5'nim‘v1 vizaAnluiesay
2 1pspanduningsan) uarianglidmiuTaugaiumaaiuaiuau
sz 227 duum vireandludesas 1 1esaanmelfon (2552
104 duum viveAalufesas 1 veseanmelisn) swnsiiuees
mwﬂ@ﬂmﬂmqmm@mu‘imwmuummmmmwmﬂuu Tne
ﬂnwlm”l,ma‘mqmmmm@uummmg@ﬂyunﬂmmmwmﬂ WA
nsuansauiinaasimdr ludouiiinandesiudiuluuay
‘E’]F;Iﬂ’]im’]\'i"] 189159 el08 AN mmmﬂmmmmmuum
mammmmmmm@uummuuu

mwwﬂmﬂgummmmmumummﬁmmm@uumw
ammmiﬂmmuum’lumwmm'mmqLmutmvﬂgummmwﬂﬁim
AT UL 9HMANATILNIRUL ATy AN dRsadaWiaase
@mﬂumrmﬁmmﬂiu mimm@m@mqummﬂm%miwmmwaﬂ
LRIIE neusEN T uS N EULAY naidawadayalu
JUNNTRY T‘I’]i‘ﬂi“’muﬂ’l’mLMN']“’@N%I'BQ‘M@?]ﬂ’]ﬁ‘umﬁﬁ’lﬂ'ﬂﬂ’]ﬂﬁ]LL@“’
ﬂaﬁvmmmimmrmmamimqmmuwLﬂuaﬁivmﬂm mwmma
Lﬂummmmu rﬂ@@mumiﬂi%wmmmmmwzﬁmmmﬂmm
mﬂmi‘wmmuaiuwmmuimmqm IwdrFedansnanaaeu s
nanalidesgUinduinmsiadramunzanlunisuaninanuiiuees
drwidn

dwdiiudnainnisasiaaeuresimAILATAINIINIUTRN
faouiinyTau sunsRuinsfuilianagiuenisiu o dun 31 fueu
2553 uAy 2552 HANNIANLHBIULANITLARUARdMTLT Augn
Jupgaiuwaesuaazdaasndin a1un lalasdidalnlina anfin
(VW) UATLEEERLLAZIRNZTRILEEN 8110 lulpsdidninsting
Sin (Mum) Immﬂmmms,mmﬂumumﬂmmumﬂms‘um“ﬁ
fsusaaialy

A‘/ﬂ)‘?ﬂzf fM‘?‘ﬂt/’?Jrnz

NNANNE LRAINEITLNN

(%

aeuiityTiuawnye wanzideu 4377

L3N 4193913 1BRAN Laus 89 Anm
NIAUNN: 1 HUAN 2554

<

SagvIUYaLWdauUYBSUBlIN
Report of Independent Auditor
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Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the separate
financial statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company
Limited for the same periods. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Company and its
subsidiaries as to their correctness and the completeness of the
presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audits.

| did not audit the financial statements of an overseas
subsidiary company, whose financial statements are included in
the consolidated financial statements. This subsidiary company
had the total assets as at 31 December 2010 of approximately Baht
335 million, representing 2 percent of the consolidated total (2009:
Baht 231 million, representing 2 percent of the consolidated total)
and total revenues for the year then ended of approximately Baht
227 million, representing 1 percent of the consolidated total (2009:
Baht 104 million, representing 1 percent of the consolidated total).
The financial statements of this subsidiary company were audited
by the auditor of this subsidiary company and | had obtained the
reports from its auditor. My opinion, insofar as it related to any
amounts and particulars included for this subsidiary company, was
based solely upon the reports of the other auditor.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of the
other auditor, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hana
Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and
of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited as at 31
December 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations, and
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Kamontip Lertwitworatep
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4377

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 1 March 2011
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* Financial Statements

vuna / Balance sheets

13 81w lalpsaidnlnsiag S1in (1) uazL3ees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

24 JuR 31 $u9AN 2553 waz 2552 / As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

(198l U / Unit; Baht)

UNTELYB
Note

JUMIRUTIN
Consolidated financial statements

JUMsRUaNIZIAMS
Separate financial statements

Aunsne Assets

Aunswevauidau Current assets
RugnuazmensiisLwiRugn Cash and cash equivalents 6
Efmmv;wﬁmm - "3 Short-term investments - net 8

@ﬂﬂﬁmiﬁﬁ Trade accounts receivable

1i3ENeiae Subsidiary companies 7,9

1384 - g0 Other companies - net 9

@nﬂﬁmi‘ﬁ’] - Q‘V@‘ Trade accounts receivable - net
Aufpamae - gWa Inventories - net 10
aum“wﬁmuﬁau%u Other current assets

RunA993aIe Advances

ddli’ a &
NMEaaLIeNAU Input tax refundable
AnERulFU8A Income tax refundable

A 7 Others

iquauwé"wéwquﬁﬂu’su Total other current assets
i’auauwé"wéwquﬁﬂu Total current assets

Funinellaiviyuidan Non-current assets

Ruasuluiismees Investments in subsidiary companies 1"
ﬁu@mui:ﬂxmﬁu Other long-term investment

finu 2"auazLnanl 4va Property, plant and equipment - net 12
Funinelaiffanu - gn8 Intangible assets - net 13
Zuwivwﬂhimguﬁﬂuﬁﬂlu Other non-current assets
i‘quauw%’wﬂﬁuquﬁﬂu Total non-current assets
FINAUNSNE Total assets

2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009
2,974,543,667 4,272,065,032 662,729,295 902,743,530
2,035,008,875 1,729,128,825 = -

= - 18,432,960 20,880,768
2,431,563,826 2,293,059,875 1,012,425,958 1,062,953,820
2,431,563,826 2,293,059,875 1,030,858,918 1,073,834,588
2,555,007,995 1,756,823,504 615,977,221 527,897,418

45,543,055 8,717,817 4,436,454 558,722
60,633,584 28,093,285 9,358,276 6,311,780
8,136,856 8,136,856 8,136,856 8,136,856
128,827,410 61,210,454 12,203,162 12,681,164
243,140,905 106,158,412 34,134,748 27,688,522
10,239,265,268 10,157,235,648 2,343,700,182 2,532,164,068
= - 3,427,501,838 3,427,501,838

97,000 97,000 97,000 97,000
6,526,493,027 5,600,953,118 1,722,116,444 1,668,823,046
17,568,626 20,867,964 4,739,191 3,461,499
20,511,504 31,746,870 1,328,750 1,328,750
6,564,670,157 5,653,664,952 5,165,783,223 4,991,212,133
16,803,935,425 15,810,900,600 7,499,483,405 7,523,376,191

1 v
winewasznansunsRuiludaunileresaunstull The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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vuna (rd) / Balance sheets (continued)

138 8 Tulrsaidnlnsiing S1in (u11w) wazL3eies / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
o i 31 FunnAN 2553 waz 2552 / As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

UHEILR
Note

Mﬁautmquwﬂmpﬁmﬁu Liabilites and shareholders’ equity
Mﬁauwguﬁﬂu Current liabilities
Ruftiuszarduainaniiiunis@u Short-term loan from financial institution 14
1§1wiln"3An Trade accounts payable
L3ENeiaY Subsidiary companies 7
13584 Other companies
79318 Miln"3A" Total trade accounts payable
Runasasdainuismeas Advances from a subsidiary company 7
szanounnInil&usyezdu Short-term provisions
UszrnnuinsuaauaINmMIgnUszdiumi Provision forloss on tax assessment  24.5
Ansaannafuilseriudumn Provision for product warranty
B 7] Others
3 v
santlazanunnIvilAuszedu Total short-term provisions
N .
WiAwiWdeWaY Other current liabilities
7]
18wilau Other payable
1 F 70 v g
AnldanaA19ae Accrued expenses
M#RWLATAYAAAANAY Corporate income tax payable
RuuatamtiaangnAn Advances received from customers
4
21 ] Others
= ~ A o
TINUUAUNYULIEUAU Total other current liabilities
AIA a . agags
FINUUAUNYULILY Total current liabilities
Ha _——
FANUNUAU Total liabilities

winawigUsznausunsfuilugoumileressun1siuil The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Widogl: U / Unit; Baht)

JUMSRUTIN
Consolidated financial statements

JUMsRUANIZIAMS
Separate financial statements

2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009
- 43,906,080 - -
- - 13,050,545 19,778,378
1,698,689,531 | 1,506,486,045 | 45850559 559,629,383
1698,689,531 1,506486,045 471,556,141 579,407,761
- - 74 74
150,465,664 | 150,465,664 150465664 150,465,664
182,991,964 173,002,377 - -
- 9,276,526 - -
333,457,628 332744567 150465664 150,465,664
307,965443 | 512,109,568 46,925,107 42,600,033
176,592,436 151,780,909 26,291,304 22,941,621
25,266,043 108,304,631 8,727,959 88,538,735
165,490,419 114,606,139 10,041,402 9,216,145
17,937,740 34,676,389 14,100,901 13,724,729
693,252,081 921477636 106,086,673 177,021,263
2725399240 2804614328 728108552 906,894,762
2725399240 2804614328 728108552 906,894,762
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VuUNISLou

vufa (o) / Balance sheets (continued)
13 81w lalpsaidnlnsiag S1in (1) uazL3ees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
24 JuR 31 $u9AN 2553 waz 2552 / As at 31 December 2010 and 2009 (114981 U / Unit: Baht)

JUMIRUTIN JUMRUANIZIAMS
Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements

NN

Note 2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009

A7u723HD2YU Shareholders’ equity
Vgulﬁ?'ﬂuﬁu Share capital
Nuannziiieu Registered
Yuanszy 1,000,000,000 1 yAAFUAL 1 LW
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
NueanMmheazdszfingar1uda Issued and fully paid-up

Yuanslty 830,474,960 ¥ yaATUAL 1 LW

830,474,960 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 830,474,960 830,474,960 830,474,960 830,474,960
AauiuyaA"iuay Share premium 1723218982  1,723,218982  1,723218,982  1,723,218,982
inlafdelaifstuas - mul,ﬁuvqlumnmnﬂ?v'ﬂul,l,ﬂmgam'ﬂ Ruaanu
Unrealised gain - revaluation surplus on changes in value of investments 8 103,872,536 68,996,217 = -
NAFWNANNNITULAYANLNNTNY Translation adjustment (599,613,810)  (14,397,097) - -
flsavas Retained earnings

Anassuan - zﬁwmmmguuw Appropriated - statutory reserve 15 320,218,399 320,218,399 100,000,000 100,000,000
nassusn - ﬁﬂi’ﬂdﬁ:umﬁm%@ﬁu Appropriated - reserve for treasury shares 16 262,987,260 262,987,260 262,987,260 262,987,260
flelallfidnass Unappropriated 11,700,365,118 10,077,774,811  4,117,680,911  3,962,787,487
'a"suﬂ’au“nmgmil'aﬁu Total shareholders’ equity 14,341,5623,445 13,269,273,532  7,034,362,113  6,879,468,689
ﬁ:umﬁfysgﬂﬁu Treasury shares 16 (262,987,260)  (262,987,260)  (262,987,260)  (262,987,260)
iqua’faummé‘ﬁaﬁu - qw% Total shareholders’ equity - net 14,078,536,185 13,006,286,272  6,771,374,853  6,616,481,429
'a‘wuﬁﬁuuaquumméﬁaﬁu Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 16,803,935,425 15,810,900,600  7,499,483,405 7,523,376,191

wiemglsznausunsRududiunilesassunsiull The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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vurinlsyrAnu / Income statements

1S @i VLNTM‘I% 1anlnating AR (WWnw) WazL3EMEae / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwiuTlaugaduf 31 fuanaw 2553 wax 2552 For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

a1¢lA Revenues
malfannisang Sales
i‘ﬁﬂ@ﬁlu Other income
ABNIIETY Interest income
Ruilunai Dividend income
ﬁﬂimﬂﬁm%l,aﬂl,ﬂalﬁu Gain on exchange
ﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁuamﬂuﬂ?ﬁwﬂﬂﬂﬁ IaNnAan"3 Gain on liquidation of subsidiary company
%'u 7] Others
mmﬂﬂrﬁéu Total other income
g9u91elR Total revenues
Anldane Expenses
r}’l’unu‘mﬂ Cost of sales
Aldanelunsana Selling expenses
AnldanalunisLdvng Administrative expenses
Fiwm_leué'u?W}i Management benefit expenses
mﬁmnumné’mmmnlﬂ?ﬂlﬂu Loss on exchange
Finldenean Other expenses
gauAldane Total expenses

[ 1 1 Ll a ala vaa
m"lin@uﬂﬂ‘m'lﬂm\imﬂwLmzmmwvlmumqﬂﬂa Income before finance
cost and corporate income tax

Anldanan19n19Ru Finance cost

mlstaumBRulaiAyaaa Income before corporate income tax
nmRulfiAyana Corporate income tax

fnlsgnadrusniil Net income for the year

msuvisiluilsgna Net income attributable to:
douiiduresgDiasfuiissn e Equity holders of the parent

ﬁ’l"lirii'aﬁu Earnings per share

ﬁﬂbli‘[fi'aﬁ:u%u*ﬁugm Basic earnings per share
ftlsavidauiidusestfiesiuniivlun () Netincome attributable to
equity holders of the parent (Baht)

v
Amwfuandtydaeagnaninin (i) Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (shares)

(Mgl U / Unit; Baht)

SIGHS TR JUNMIRUENIZAANIg
wnes  Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
Note 2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009

16,957,935,712  13,457,941,436  6,300,669,065  5,748,316,268
140,740,873 82,548,448 5,341,663 4,840,542
3,674,105 42,421,726 275,019,102 621,558,000
192,417,177 139,173,583 > -
11 - 28,543,180 - -
350,410,356 213,589,941 72,019,266 53,074,706
687,242,511 506,276,878 352,380,031 679,473,248
17,645,178,223  13,964,218,314  6,653,049,096  6,427,789,516

17
14,087,828,896  10,956,720,032  5,171,880,875  4,557,890,554
121,359,704 169,263,314 23,121,723 26,941,333
480,213,766 520,097,503 109,286,715 136,889,339
7 85,028,626 73,934,619 10,899,895 7,561,925
- - 27,703,073 42,825,558
26,490,626 46,752,961 = -
14,800,921,618 11,756,768,429  5,342,892,281  4,772,108,709
2,844,256,605  2,207,449,885  1,310,156,815  1,655,680,807
(7,922,492) (6,784,291) (2,316,828) (1,975,042)
2,836,334,113  2,200,665,594  1,307,839,987  1,653,705,765
(86,913,402)  (157,710,021) (26,116,159)  (116,195,922)
2,749,420,711  2,042,955573  1,281,723,828  1,537,509,843
2,7149,420,711  2,042,955573  1,281,723,828  1,537,509,843

18
342 2.53 1.59 1.90
804,878,860 808,585,721 804,878,860 808,585,721

1] v
vimﬂmﬁ]ﬂi:ﬂ@m‘uﬂﬁsﬁuLﬂu@iawﬁwmwmiﬁuﬁ The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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\)Uuaﬂ\)msluéauuUa\)eiouua\)ujﬁarju (ri0) / Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

13EN EI'W;H'] 1NTﬂ§:@L5ﬂIﬂ?ﬁﬂﬂ {17A (NUT) LAZLISENRE / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
z‘m%uﬂauzgmfuﬁ 31 §127AN 2553 WAL 2552 / For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

VAR
Note
fraAANVRG 4 T} 31 Sur1AN 2551 Balance as at 31 December 2008
finlsguddmind Netincome for the year
i’msﬂﬂ‘lﬁﬁﬁuﬁ%’ufﬁm?ﬂﬂ Total income for the year
Ruilusadny Dividend paid 22

flsazaniielalgdnasslan Unappropriated retained earnings
lufinsasusndinfaAu transferred to reserve for treasury shares 16

ﬁumﬁ(y%ﬂﬁu Treasury shares 16

ARG T4 T 31 SUrAN 2552 Balance as at 31 December 2009

sranALVNG 04 Tuft 31 SmAN 2552 Balance as at 31 December 2000
finlsgudmind Netincome for the year

sanselansaunsugdmsuil Total income for the year

Ruilunaana Dividend paid 22
ARG 04 Tt 31 SiumAN 2553 Balance as at 31 December 2010

(Widagl: U / Unit; Baht)

JUMIRULANIZNIAaM4 Separate financial statements

nuﬁaan fnlsszan Retained eamings
Smne Anas5UA2 Appropriated
uazd1szuan A feas
Issued and NAAYY A1989 Hwsnalay susnalay
paid up share fnsliy ANNYUNE Hau T
capital Share Statutory Reserve for  falailndanass Treasury
Total premium reserve treasury shares  Unappropriated shares 994 Total
830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 41,036,725  3,628,237,971 (41,036,725) 6,281,931,913
- - - 1,537,509,843 - 1,537,509,843
- - - 1,537,509,843 - 1,537,509,843
o - = (981,009,792) - (981,009,792)
- - - 221,950,535 (221,950,535) - -
= - = - (221,950,535) (221,950,535)
830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 262,987,260  3,962,787,487  (262,987,260) 6,616,481,429
830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 262,987,260  3,962,787,487  (262,987,260) 6,616,481,429
= - = 1,281,723,828 - 1,281,723,828
- - - 1,281,723,828 - 1,281,723,828
- - - (1,126,830,404) - (1,126,830,404)
830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 262,987,260  4,117,680,911  (262,987,260)  6,771,374,853

v]mﬂmrﬂqﬂf:namumiﬁutﬂudqwﬁwmwmiﬁuﬁ The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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vuns:udioudn / Cash flow statements

18 a0 1uiﬂ;§l.5ﬂimﬁﬂﬂ ANMA (W) WALLTEMeEaE / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
ﬁﬂﬁi"uﬂau@‘m’mﬁ 31 §U2NAN 2553 LAY 2552 / For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
(Widagl: U / Unit; Baht)

SUNIRUIN

. : JUNMIRULRNIZRANIG
Consolidated financial

Separate financial statements
statements

2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009

NIZUARUAAANNNANITUANLTELIY Cash flows from operating activities
ﬁﬁii‘zﬁm%ﬁﬂumﬁ Net income before tax 2,836,334,113  2,200,665,594  1,307,839,987  1,653,705,765

semsdiunsznueeanlsaninewnsiiutuaniu(@e) anianssuaiineu Adjustments to reconcile
net income before tax to net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

ﬁﬁLgﬂN?ﬂﬂﬁ Depreciation 1,138,503,896  1,002,842,247 274,015,157 251,772,621
ANBARIVLNY Amortisation expenses 5,487,198 5,650,283 577,842 365,584
T'ﬂuﬂﬁwﬁlﬁ'ﬂuﬂmﬁmzqm Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts (3,175,314) (6,637,530) - -
mm*qumnauﬁwL?zlﬂu@mmwLL@:Lm?i@uim‘ﬁﬁ@@uﬂﬁu) Allowance for diminution in inventory value (reversal) ~ (34,998,185)  (17,801,167)  (30,801,428) 9,635,529
‘mmnumnmiﬁ'mﬂﬁﬂqﬂnitﬁ Loss on disposals of equipment 4,406,069 831,784 1,211,588 2,308,814
MauaINNIeRegALesduning(laundv) Loss from impairment of assets (reversal) (16,715,107) 12,714,020 (1,192,066) 12,714,020
d1209n1350L s UAUAN Provision for product warranty 26,490,626 28,093,879 - -
ﬂifzmmmi‘ﬂﬁamw:gﬁlu Short-term provisions - other (9,276,526) 5,676,527 - -
ﬁﬂimﬂﬁuamu’[uu‘aﬁwﬂﬂﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁwmi Gain on liquidation of subsidiary company - (28,543,180) - -
ﬂmmnu(ﬁﬂi)mnmsﬂiwmﬂﬁu@muﬁﬂm Loss (gain) on sales of short-term investments 295071 (13,841,697) - -
ﬁ'ﬂ,i«nnmnﬂ?ﬂlﬂuLLﬂmgmﬁmﬁﬁﬁu mmﬁumnﬂwﬁnﬁwmﬁ@ﬁq Revaluation gain on investments
in securities held for trading (50,247,269) (49,319,459) - -
frlsnndmauanuAeuiiedlsifisausia Unrealised gain on exchange (12,935,373) (6,662,736) (2,530,802) (3,072,768)
auinls)andtyyrane Sunssessimadaamiin fefelaiifingus3e Unrealised loss (gain) on forward
contracts (25,799,479) 9,674,206 - -
ﬂmmnumné&yiywLmnLﬂﬁlﬂu?ﬁum“wﬁﬁbﬂﬁm%uﬁq Unrealised loss on swap contracts 168,245 - - -
elliRutiunaiuainyssveas Dividend income from subsidiary companies - - (275,000,000)  (621,000,000)
el uthunasuani3mau Dividend income from other companies (3,674,105)  (42,421,726) (19,125) (558,000)
mﬂmﬁﬂi"umﬂﬁumnuiwzz%u Interest income from short-term investments (109,133,665) (43,125,798) - -
Anldanenenie Interest expenses 787,139 539,330 893 -
frlsannnesnifinnuieunisulaeuuladly Funinduasuiiausniiuny Income from operating
activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,746,517,334  3,058,334,577 1,274,102,046  1,305,871,565
aum“wﬁ'ﬂ’mmiﬁﬁLﬁuﬂu(LﬁIu%u)ﬂmm Operating assets (increase) decrease
@ﬂuﬁm@ﬁw Trade accounts receivable (149,896,398)  (741,703,184) 44,452,150  (550,560,644)
AUAALVAR Inventories (763,186,306) 321,559,898 (57,278,375) 251,359,637
auﬁwﬁwulﬁﬂuﬁ‘u Other current assets (115,613,887) 959,933 (6,160,774) (10,309,816)
amﬁwé‘lmuﬁauéu Other non-current assets (5,391,408) 38,745 = -
wﬁauﬂ’mmiﬁﬂLﬁudmlﬁu%u(mm) Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
L’%’Wﬁmiﬁﬂ Trade accounts payable 202,624,005 423,086,418  (106,884,371) 157,750,776
AnldaneAneane Accrued expenses 24,811,527 (4,801,307) 3,349,683 (5,185,371)
Fui"umwﬁwmngnﬁw Advances received from customers 56,093,374 8,429,404 991,749 (1,711,126)
Mﬁauﬂguﬁﬂuﬁlu Other current liabilities (16,738,649) (27,332,338) 376,172 (7,804,875)
RuanaNRANsTNAMLHLIL Cash from operating activities 2979,219,592  3,038,572,146  1,152,948,280  1,139,410,146
f&iwm@mﬁﬁ Cash paid for interest expenses (1,140) - (893) -
e #3ULE Cash paid for corporate income tax (170,316,880)  (106,381,698)  (106,291,806) (55,313,824)
RuangniaInnanssuALie Net cash from operating activities 2,808,901,572 2,932,190,448  1,046,655,581  1,084,096,322

winawgsznausunsfuilugouilerassun1siuil The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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vuns:udioudn (no) / Cash flow statements (continued)

LS @i 1NTM‘I§ 1anlnating AR (WWnw) WazL3EMeae / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwiuTlaugaduf 31 uanaw 2553 e 2552 / For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
(1498l U / Unit; Baht)

JUN1RUIIN JUNIRWRNIZAANTS
Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements
2553/2010 2552/2009 2553/2010 2552/2009

nszl,mﬁuﬂmmn?nnssumvgu Cash flows from investing activities
ﬁumnu%mmﬁm%u Increase in short-term investments (341,825,844)  (1,357,187,796) - -
m@nt,ﬁﬂ%"umn@umnmzﬂm%u Interest income from short-term investments 109,133,665 43,125,798 - -
ﬁumm"umnmiﬁﬁmmﬁumnwffmiw Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 120,774,311 147,639,616 - -
'5uﬁuﬁum‘{_1umnu?i§mﬂ@ﬂﬁLanﬁﬁm’]i Return on investments from the liquidated subsidiary
company = 72,403,317 = -
Rutlunaiuannissveias Dividend income from subsidiary companies - - 275,000,000 621,000,000
Gutlunaiuannu3Evias Dividend income from other companies 3,674,105 42,421,726 19,125 558,000
%ﬁﬁau 'ﬂ”lﬁ’]iLLﬂ:’qﬂniniAoquisitions of property, plant and equipment (2,291,160,141) (401,829,791) (436,940,291) (219,243,276)
ﬁuﬂm“umnmi'sﬂmhﬂﬂqﬂﬂmi Proceeds from disposals of equipment 35,281,249 35,988,409 3,937,288 9,079,994
FumsndlaiTifaufiads Increase in intangible assets (2,187,860) (951,386) (1,855,534) (647,390)
aum"wﬁlsimguﬁauﬁlu(ﬁﬁu)@mm Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets 16,626,774 (29,597,248) - -
Quangnaan(ldlaluianssauasmu Net cash from (used in) investing activities (2,349,683,741)  (1,447,987,355)  (159,839,412) 410,747,328
NSEUANURAANNNANGTNAAWIEY Cash flows from financing activities
ﬁur’ﬁui:f;lm;uﬂWﬂﬂmﬁum’a‘ﬁmﬁu%u(mm) Increase (decrease) in short-term loan from financial
institution (43,906,080) 43,906,080 - -
ﬂi’]ﬂm@mﬁﬁ Cash paid for interest expenses (785,999) (539,330) - -
Guﬂmdﬁﬂﬁ’m%’uﬁunu‘%ﬂﬁu Cash paid for purchase of treasury shares = (221,950,535) - (221,950,535)
Anakuilina Dividend paid (1,126,830,404) (981,009,792)  (1,126,830,404) (981,009,792)
Fuangnaldliluianssudamidu Net cash used in financing activities (1,171,522,483)  (1,159,593,577)  (1,126,830,404)  (1,202,960,327)
ﬁummmmﬂmﬂﬁﬂumqﬁu@mﬁuﬁu(mm) Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (712,304,652) 324,609,516 (240,014,235) 291,883,323
NAR19AINNTULA9ANLINSRY Translation adjustment (585,216,713)  (368,842,512) - -
ﬁuamm:ﬂﬂmﬂﬁﬂuwhﬁuﬂmﬁuﬁvu(amm)qwﬁ Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (1,297,521,365) (44,232,996) (240,014,235) 291,883,323
Ruanuaysanaiiguwinduandull Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4272,065,032  4,316,298,028 902,743,530 610,860,207
Ruanuazsemsiiguvinituanansil (vanaue 6) Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year (Note 6) 2,974,543,667 4,272,065,032 662,729,295 902,743,530
ﬁ'ﬂgan‘immﬁuﬂmL?memﬁlmau Supplemental cash flow information
mn7sﬁiu"lﬂiEummﬂﬁ@niiummmuﬂsznauﬁ'm Non-cash related transactions from investing
activities

L’%’Wﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂmmiLLm‘qﬂnirﬁLﬁmﬁu(ﬂmm) Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable for

purchase of plant and equipment (204,144,125) 371,518,498 4,325,074 24,723,666

ﬁﬂmmmﬂ,ﬂﬁﬂuuﬂmuﬂarﬁhf;qlﬁﬁsimﬂqGumv;u‘lwﬁnﬁwmﬁww Revaluation suplus on

changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments 34,876,319 93,795,406 - -

wewlsznassunsRududiumilesassunsiull The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

1.

General information

Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a limited company under Thai law and
transformed to be a public limited company under the Public Limited Companies Act on 27 January 1993. The Company operates
its business in Thailand and it is principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of electronic components. The registered
office of the Company is at 10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi - Rangsit Road, Kwang Talad Bangkhen, Khet Laksi, Bangkok.

Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the Accounting
Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development dated 30 January 2009, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial statements
in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting
policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited
(“the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”):

Revenues
as a percentage to
the consolidated
total for the year
ended

Assets
as a percentage
to the consolidated
total as at

Country of Percentage of

Company'’s name Nature of business
[Py incorporation shareholding

31 December
31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Percent Percent  Percent Percent Percent Percent

Held by the Company
Manufacture and trading of

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited electronic components Thailand 100 100 3 3 5 8
Omac Sales Limited Trading of electronic components  Hong Kong 100 100 1 1 - -
Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited Holding company British Virgin Islands 100 100 13 13 2 2
Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited Holding company British Virgin Islands 100 100 - - - 2
Hana Technologies Group Limited Holding company Cayman Islands 100 100 - - - -
Manufacture and trading of

Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited  electronic components Thailand 58 58 17 16 20 17
Held through the subsidiary companies

Hana Semiconductor International Limited Trading of electronic components  British Virgin Islands 100 100 B 4 20 18
Hana Semiconductor Holding Limited Holding company British Virgin Islands 100 100 - - - -
Hana Technologies Investments Limited Holding company Cayman Islands 100 100 - - - -

Manufacture and trading of

Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc. electronic components USA 100 100 2 2 1 1
Hana Microelectronics, Inc. Agent and customer services USA 100 100 - - - -
Hana Microelectronics Enterprises Company Limited  Holding company British Virgin Island 100 100 - - - -
Hana Macao Commercial Offshore Limited Customer services Macao 100 100 - - = =

Manufacture and trading of
Hana Microelectronics (Jiaxing) Company Limited electronic components China 100 100 23 23 1 1

Manufacture and trading of
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited  electronic components Thailand 42 42 12 12 15 12
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Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control,

and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting policies as the Company.

The assets and liabilities in the financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Thai Baht using

the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses translated using monthly average

exchange rates. The resulting differences are shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’

equity.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been eliminated from the

consolidated financial statements.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method, have been prepared

solely for the benefit of the public.

Adoption of new accounting standards
During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised and new accounting standards as

listed below.

a)

b)

Accounting standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2011 (except Framework for the

Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, which is immediately effective):

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2009)

TAS 1 (revised 2009)
TAS 2 (revised 2009)
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 11 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 (revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)
TAS 18 (revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 26

TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 28 (revised 2009)
TAS 29
TAS 31 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 (revised 2009)
TAS 34 (revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)
TAS 37 (revised 2009)
TAS 38 (revised 2009)
TAS 40 (revised 2009)
TFRS 2

TFRS 3 (revised 2009)
TFRS 5 (revised 2009)
TFRS 6

TFRIC 15

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Interests in Joint Ventures

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Share-Based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Accounting standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013:

TAS 12
TAS 20 (revised 2009)

Income Taxes

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
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4.2

4.3

4.4

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant impact on the
financial statements for the year when they are initially applied, except for the following accounting standards which
management expects the impact on the financial statements in the year when they are adopted.

TAS 19 Employee Benefits

This accounting standard requires employee benefits to be recognised as expense in the period in which the service is
performed by the employee. In particular, an entity has to evaluate and make a provision for post-employment benefits
or liabilities arising from other defined benefit plans using actuarial techniques. Currently, the Company accounts for
such employee benefits when they are incurred.

At present, the management s evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is adopted.
TAS 12 Income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences, which are differences between the carrying
amount of an asset or liability in the accounting records and its tax base, and to recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities under the stipulated guidelines.

At present, the management s evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is adopted.
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify its functional currency in accordance with certain conditions in
the standard and to record transactions and report its financial position and operating results in this functional currency,
which may not be Baht.

At present, the management s evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is adopted.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Sales
are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts and allowances.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated
losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experiences and analysis
of debt aging.

Inventories
Raw materials, work in process and finished goods are valued at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost) and
net realisable value. Cost of work in process and finished goods includes direct materials, direct labour and factory overheads.
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Allowance for diminution in inventory value is set up for obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated inventories.

Investments
a) Investments in securities held for trading of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value of these securities are
recorded as gains or losses arising in the income statements.

b) Investments in available-for-sale securities of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these securities
are recorded as a separate item in shareholders’ equity, and will be recorded as gains or losses in the income statements
when securities are sold.

c) Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Stock Exchange in foreign countries. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on
yield rate quoted by the oversea banks.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on
impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements - period of lease
Buildings - 20 years
Installation - 10 years
Other assets - 3-15years

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land, construction in progress and machinery under installation.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost on the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to the income
statement.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:
Useful lives

Computer software 5-10 years

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly or indirectly,
or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that
gives them significantinfluence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning
and direction of the Company’s operations.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transbted into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date.
O

O
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Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the Company
and its subsidiaries could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as expenses when
incurred.

Treasury share

Treasury share is stated at cost and is presented as a reduction from shareholders’ equity. Gains on disposal of treasury share
is determined by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock, losses on disposal of treasury stock
are determined by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock and retained earnings, consecutively.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and the subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

In addition, its subsidiaries also record provision for product warranty, which is estimated by reference to obligation for product
warranty under manufacturing contract.

Income tax
Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits
determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Derivatives - forward exchange contracts
Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining income.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires management
to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates
affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significantjudgments and estimates
are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based upon, among
other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value
In determining an allowance for diminution in inventory value, the management needs to make judgment in estimating loss from
obsolescence and slow moving, and the reduction of net realisable value of inventories.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily
available, the management exercises judgment, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these models
is taken from observable markets, and includes consideration of liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments.

Impairment of equity investments

The Company and its subsidiaries treat available-for-sale equity investments and other investments as impaired when the
management judges that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment and depreciation
In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives and salvage
values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and record
impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying cost. This requires
judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 as reflected in the balance sheets and cash flow statements consist
of the following:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Cash in hand and at banks 1,064,128,170 1,761,724,595 212,729,295 362,743,530
Bills of exchange 750,000,000 1,240,000,000 450,000,000 540,000,000
Fixed deposits with maturity not over 3 months 1,160,415,497 1,270,340,437 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,974,543,667 4,272,065,032 662,729,295 902,743,530

As at 31 December 2010, bank deposits in saving account, fixed deposits and bills of exchange carried interests between 0.001
and 2.25 percent per annum (2009: 0.25 and 1.00 percent per annum).

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions,
which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases
agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

Transfer pricing policy

2010 2009
Transactions with subsidiary companies
(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)
Sales of goods 22 182 Prices agreed between the parties due to the
uniqueness of products sold to each customer
Dividend income 275 621 Declared rate
Rental income 13 13 Contract price
Purchase of materials 91 80 Cost plus mark up
Purchase of fixed assets 1 14 Cost plus mark up
Service fee expenses 2 5 Rates stipulated in the agreement
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As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies
Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc.

Omac Sales Limited

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited

Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited
Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited

Hana Semiconductor International Limited

Total trade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

Trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies
Omac Sales Limited

Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc.

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited
Hana Microelectronics, Inc.

Hana Semiconductor International Limited

Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited

Total trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies

Advance from a subsidiary company
Hana Technologies Group Limited

Total advance from a subsidiary company

Directors’ and management’s remuneration

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements

2010 2009
15,833,621 2,126,519
1,450,094 4,219,397
1,149,245 1,129,211
- 13,341,319
- 33,199
— 31,123
18,432,960 20,880,768

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements

2010 2009
8,243,628 17,445,149
2,168,965 145,936
1,369,579 562,992
623,922 1,037,313
575,970 586,988
68,481 -
13,050,545 19,778,378
74 74
74 74

In 2010, the Company and its subsidiaries had salaries, bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities of their directors and management

recognised as expenses totaling Baht 85.0 million (the Company only: Baht 10.9 million) (2009: Baht 73.9 million, the Company

only: Baht 7.6 million).
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8. Shori-term Investments

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Cost/ Cost/
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Securities held for trading

Overseas marketable equity securities 30,153,673 33,274,206 33,388,952 33,420,138
Domestic marketable equity securities 37,353,309 128,195,740 41,361,059 85,252,579
Credit linked note - - 33,388,952 33,181,941
Total 67,506,982 161,469,946 108,138,963 151,854,658
Add: Revaluation surplus on changes in value of investments 93,962,964 - 43,715,695 -
Securities held for trading 161,469,946 161,469,946 151,854,658 151,854,658
Available-for-sale securities

Overseas marketable corporate bonds 901,608,283 932,939,694 1,221,503,855 1,279,251,463
Quoted bonds 868,058,110 940,599,235 286,774,095 298,022,704
Total 1,769,666,393 1,873,538,929 1,508,277,950 1,577,274,167
Add: Revaluation surplus on changes in value of investments 103,872,536 - 68,996,217 -
Available-for-sale securities 1,873,538,929 1,873,538,929 1,577,274,167 1,577,274,167
Total short-term investments 2,035,008,875 2,035,008,875 1,729,128,825 1,729,128,825

8.1 Securities held for trading

Since the third quarter of 2008, Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited, an overseas subsidiary company, had
invested in mutual fund of a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Cayman Island, warrants and shares of a company listed
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), including the Credit linked note through an overseas bank. These investments are held
for trading purpose. During 2009, this subsidiary additionally invested in shares of a company listed on the SET and sold the entire
amount of warrants and partial shares invested in 2008, resulting in gain of HKD 2.2 million or equivalent to approximately Baht
9.9 million. In addition, the subsidiary had redeemed the Credit linked note invested in 2008, resulting in gain of HKD 0.4 million
or equivalent to Baht 1.7 million and invested in a new Credit linked note through an overseas bank. During the current year, the
subsidiary has redeemed the Credit linked note invested in the prior year, resulting in gain of HKD 0.2 million or equivalent to
approximately Baht 0.8 million.

As at 31 December 2009, investments in securities held for trading of HKD 117 million, or equivalent to Baht 518 million, were
used as security for short-term loan from financial institution as discussed in Note 14.

As at 31 December 2010, the subsidiary had assessed the fair value of the equity securities for mutual fund and the remaining
shares by referring to latest bid price as quoted on the Stock Exchanges, in which the fair value had increased by HKD 14.1 million
or equivalent to approximately Baht 50.2 million (2009: increased by HKD 11.4 million or equivalent to approximatley Baht 49.3
million). The changes in the fair value of these investments were recognised in the income statement for the year.

8.2 Available-for-sale securities
In addition, this subsidiary had invested in private corporate bonds issued by various companies listed on the overseas Stock
Exchanges and quoted bonds through the three overseas banks. These investments are classified as available-for-sale investments.
During 2009, the subsidiary additionally invested in both listed corporate bonds and quoted bonds and sold some of the bonds,
resulting in gain of HKD 0.5 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 2.2 million. During the current year, the subsidiary additionally
invested in both listed corporate bonds and quoted bonds and sold some of the bonds, and partial quoted bonds were matured
resulting in net loss of HKD 0.3 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 1.1 million

As at 31 December 2010, the subsidiary had assessed the fair value of the bonds by referring to the value quoted by the banks
in which the fair value had increased by HKD 10.8 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 34.9 million (2009: increased by
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HKD 21.5 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 93.8 million). The changes in the fair value of such bonds are shown as a

separate item in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Trade accounts receivable

The balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, aged on the basis of due dates, are summarised

below.
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Age of receivable 2010 2009 2010 2009
Accounts receivable - subsidiary companies
Not yet due - - 2,054,032 15,260,329
Past due
Up to 3 months - - 8,237,822 4,325,251
3 -6 months - - 3,630,195 593,365
6 - 12 months - - 4,030,145 436,316
Over 12 months - - 480,766 265,507
Total accounts receivable - subsidiary companies - - 18,432,960 20,880,768
Accounts receivable - other companies
Not yet due 1,909,839,783 1,922,022,037 858,883,938 964,057,273
Past due
Up to 3 months 513,225,406 359,036,611 152,470,428 88,631,874
3 -6 months 8,956,571 9,381,923 1,071,592 264,293
6 - 12 months 2,781,662 3,265,939 - 380
Over 12 months - 5,768,275 - -
Total accounts receivable - other companies 2,434,803,422 2,299,474,785 1,012,425,958 1,052,953,820
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,239,596) (6,414,910) - -
Total trade accounts receivable - other companies - net 2,431,563,826 2,293,059,875 1,012,425,958 1,052,953,820
Total trade accounts receivable - net 2,431,563,826 2,293,059,875 1,030,858,918 1,073,834,588
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10. Inventories

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Allowance for diminution in inventory value
Damaged and
Cost deteriorated inventories Slow-moving inventories Inventories - net
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Finished goods 685,983,946 499,262,249 (127,928,231)  (139,438,485) (1,513,470) (1,040,394) 556,542,245 358,783,370
Work in process 243,302,398 225,926,393 - - - - 243,302,398 225,926,393
Raw materials 1,747,327,008 1,201,808,686  (33,839,102)  (34,099,223)  (42,789,745)  (66,490,631) 1,670,698,161 1,101,218,832
Goods in transit 84,465,191 70,894,909 - - - - 84,465,191 70,894,909
Total 2,761,078,543 1,997,892,237  (161,767,333) (173,537,708)  (44,303,215)  (67,531,025) 2,555,007,995 1,756,823,504
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Allowance for diminution in inventory value
Damaged and
Cost deteriorated inventories Slow-moving inventories Inventories - net
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Finished goods 223,298,762 249,766,034  (127,928,231)  (138,418,731) (1,310,287) (644,692) 94,060,244 110,702,611
Work in process 72,079,924 85,472,823 - - - - 72,079,924 85,472,823
Raw materials 495,767,147 391,431,140 (29,471,120) (29,942,102) (18,105,384) (38,610,925) 448,190,643 322,878,113
Goods in transit 1,646,410 8,843,871 - - - - 1,646,410 8,843,871
Total 792,792,243 735,513,868  (157,399,351)  (168,360,833) (19,415,671) (39,255,617) 615,977,221 527,897,418
11. Investments in subsidiary companies
(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Dividend received for the
years ended

Company’s name Paid up capital Shareholding percentage Cost 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Percent Percent
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company  1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 58 58  2,142,909,786 2,142,909,786 175,000,000 301,000,000
Limited
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company  1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100 100  1,011,100,000 1,011,100,000 100,000,000 320,000,000
Limited
Omac Sales Limited 325,375 325,375 100 100 273,491,816 273,491,816
Hana Microelectronics International 51 51 100 100 51 51
Company Limited
Hana Microelectronics Investment 51 51 100 100 1M 1M1
Company Limited
Hana Technologies Group Limited 74 74 100 100 74 74
Total investments in subsidiary companies 3,427,501,838 3,427,5601,838 275,000,000 621,000,000

During the third quarter of 2009, Hana Microelectronics Company Limited (Shanghai), a subsidiary company of Hana Microelectronics
Investment Company Limited, registered for liquidation. Hana Microelectronics Investment Company Limited received return on its
investment in this subsidiary of USD 12.2 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 416.0 million, resulting in gain on investment under
equity method of approximately Baht 28.5 million, which was included in the 2009 consolidated income statement.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Construction in
Land Buildings irt;?:\/e:rgﬁnt Installation MZZT::)T;:PG OfﬁceequirF:\:;L;r:tand Vehicles mgz?:: j::er Total
installation

Cost
31 December 2009 167,377,250 1,835,701,467 138,354,232 535,122,648 8,745,579,530 426,315,288 55,337,926 179,350,037 12,073,138,378
Additions 121,631,200 11,918,498 155,100 27,482,231 1,038,671,923 50,455,073 8,430,333 944,457,953 2,203,202,311
Disposals - - - (6,469,918) (199,472,608) (8,124,745) (13,569,917) - (227,637,188)
Transfer in (out) - 210,207,844 - 15,149,835 513,347,270 5,571,767 - (744,276,716) -
Translation adjustment - (40,303,982) (4,071,482) - (131,999,328) (3,680,915) (1,032,761) (4,338,386) (185,426,854)
31 December 2010 279,008,450 2,017,523,827 134,437,850 571,284,796 9,966,126,787 470,536,468 49,165,581 375,192,888 13,863,276,647
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2009 - 515,148,885 111,640,761 357,334,777 5,005,938,573 342,779,794 35,243,309 - 6,368,086,099
Depreciation for the year - 91,278,658 5,946,604 40,572,920 958,037,693 34,808,512 7,859,509 - 1,138,503,896
Accumulated depreciation - - - (382,815) (168,438,391) (6,887,772) (12,240,892) - (187,949,870)
for disposed assets
Translation adjustment - (8,368,122) (2,782,506) - (50,180,963) (2,762,076) (580,217) - (64,673,884)
31 December 2010 - 598,069,421 114,804,859 397,524,882 5,745,356,912 367,938,458 30,281,709 - 7,253,966,241
Allowance for impairment loss
31 December 2009 - - - 613,065 103,486,096 - - - 104,099,161
Decrease during the year - - - - (16,715,107) - - - (16,715,107)
Translation adjustment - - - - (4,566,675) - - - (4,566,675)
31 December 2010 - - - 613,065 82,204,314 - - - 82,817,379
Net book value
31 December 2009 157,377,250 1,320,652,582 26,713,471 177,174,806 3,636,154,861 83,635,494 20,094,617 179,350,037 5,600,953,118
31 December 2010 279,008,450 1,419,464,406 19,632,991 173,146,849 4,138,565,561 102,598,010 18,883,872 375,192,888 6,526,493,027
Depreciation for the year
2009 (Baht 860 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 1,002,842,247
2010 (Baht 1,013 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) W

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements
Construction
Lo Bt o et oo YOO T
installation

Cost
31 December 2009 50,993,534 811,990,784 85,641,093 139,172,267 1,830,334,420 101,411,152 18,559,825 99,533,353 3,137,636,428
Additions 121,631,200 518,498 - 1,284,091 17,031,897 11,366,997 2,537,607 286,895,075 441,265,365
Disposals - - - - (25,676,155) (1,219,905) - - (26,896,060)
Transfer in (out) - - - 7,575,898 230,673,632 174,100 - (238,423,630) -
31 December 2010 172,624,734 812,509,282 85,641,093 148,032,256 2,052,363,794 111,732,344 21,097,432 148,004,798 3,652,005,733
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2009 - 230,870,288 78,353,943 63,482,309 1,104,824,929 80,562,131 12,017,721 - 1,670,111,321
Depreciation for the year - 40,617,907 4,858,091 11,487,731 206,062,024 8,180,060 2,809,344 - 274,015,157
Accumulated depreciation for
disposed assets - - - - (20,739,368) (1,007,816) - - (21,747,184)
31 December 2010 - 271,488,195 83,212,034 74,970,040 1,290,147,585 87,734,375 14,827,065 - 1,822,379,294
Allowance for impairment loss
31 December 2009 - - - 613,065 8,088,996 - - - 8,702,061
Decrease during the year - - - - (1,192,066) - - - (1,192,066)
31 December 2010 - - - 613,065 6,896,930 - - - 7,509,995
Net book value
31 December 2009 50,993,534 581,120,496 7,287,150 75,076,893 717,420,495 20,849,021 6,542,104 99,533,353 1,658,823,046
31 December 2010 172,624,734 541,021,087 2,429,059 72,449,151 755,319,279 23,997,969 6,270,367 148,004,798 1,722,116,444
Depreciation for the year
2009 (Baht 187 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 251,772,621
2010 (Baht 206 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 274,015,157

As at 31 December 2010, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount,
before deducting accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment loss, of those assets amounted to approximately Baht
3,693 million (2009: Baht 3,148 million) and for the Company amounted to approximately Baht 614 million (2009: Baht 568 million).

o
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Details of intangible assets which are computer software are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statement Separate financial statements
Cost
31 December 2009 38,746,773 4,911,557
Additions 2,429,129 1,855,534
Translation adjustment (695,843) -
31 December 2010 40,480,059 6,767,091
Amortisation
31 December 2009 (17,878,809) (1,450,058)
Amortisation (5,487,198) (577,842)
Translation adjustment 454,574 -
31 December 2010 (22,911,433) (2,027,900)
Net book value
31 December 2009 20,867,964 3,461,499
31 December 2010 17,568,626 4,739,191
Amortisation for the year
31 December 2009 5,650,283 365,584
31 December 2010 5,487,198 577,842

v

Short-term loan from financial institution

During 2009, Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited, an overseas subsidiary company, entered into a loan agreement
with an overseas commercial bank to borrow short-term loan of AUD 1.5 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 43.9 million.
The short-term loan bears interest at the rate of 4.35% per annum and is secured by the pledge of the investments held under
the account of the lender by the subsidiary company. The subsidiary company had repaid this short-term loan during the second
quarter of 2010.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a statutory reserve
at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10
percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Treasury shares
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, details of treasury shares are as follows:

Consolidated and separate financial statements

2010 2009
Cost of treasury shares (Thousand Baht) 262,987 262,987
Number of treasury shares (Thousand shares) 25,596 25,596
Average price per share (Baht) 10.27 10.27
Percentage of treasury shares to the Company’s shares in issue 3.08 3.08

A resolution of a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 4/2551 held on 7 October 2008 approved the repurchase of
shares of the Company in order to manage its excess cash, increase earnings per share and to maximise shareholder benefits,
with a budget of not more than Baht 1,600 million. The repurchase shall not more than 83 million shares, equivalent to 9.99% of
total issued and paid-up shares of the Company. The period of repurchase of shares is from 22 October 2008 to 22 April 2009
and these shares are to be sold after 6 months from the date of completing the repurchase of shares, but not more than 3 years.

Under the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. Gor Lor Tor. Chor. Sor. (Wor) 2/2548 and the
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Notification of the Federation of Accounting Professions No. Sor. Sor Wor Bor Chor. 016/2548, public limited company is required
to set aside retained earnings in an amount equal to the amount paid for treasury shares until either the shares are sold or paid-up
capital is reduced by cancellation of any remaining unsold shares.

During the year 2009, the Company repurchased 21.12 million ordinary shares with total cost of Baht 221.95 million and set aside
Baht 221.95 million of its retained earnings as reserve for treasury shares. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, total shares
repurchased by the Company were 25.6 million ordinary shares with total cost of Baht 262.99 million, and reserve for treasury
shares amounted to Baht 262.99 million.

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Raw materials and consumables used 9,776,017,878 7,643,770,510 3,898,075,431 3,507,481,000
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process (204,097,702) 158,128,113 39,860,171 70,795,710
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 2,496,593,570 1,920,550,641 771,319,223 580,988,765
Management benefit expenses 85,028,626 73,934,619 10,899,895 7,561,925
Depreciation 1,138,503,896 1,002,842,247 274,015,157 251,772,621
Loss on exchange - - 27,703,073 42,825,558

Product warranty expenses 26,490,626 28,093,879 = =

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
held by public and in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
held by public and in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued
to convert of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place
either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in the consolidated and separate financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2009 is calculated as follows:

(Unit: Shares)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

2010 2009
Balance brought forward (net of treasury shares) 804,878,860 825,997,860
Less: Treasury shares during the year - (17,412,139)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 804,878,860 808,585,721

Warrants

The Company had in 2006 issued warrants to the Company’s employees and directors, as detailed below.

Number of warrants: 20,000,000 warrants

Exercise price: Baht 27.40 per share

Exercise ratio: 1 ordinary share: 1 warrant

Exercise period: From 31 October 2006 to 31 July 2010

However, no warrants were exercised until the exercise period ended on 31 July 2010.

As at 31 December 2009, there were outstanding warrants of 20 million warrants. However, the warrants were excluded from the
calculation of potential diluted ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended 31 December 2009

since the exercise price exceeded the weighted average fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

o
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During the year 2010, the Company was approved by the Board of investment to terminate the promotional certificate no.
1091(1)/2545.

The Company’s operating revenues for the years 2010 and 2009 could be divided according to promoted and non-promoted
operations as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Promoted operations Non-promoted operations Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Sales
Domestic sales 18,788 133,365 24,320 69,220 43,108 202,585
Export sales 6,268,543,121 5,455,292,671 32,082,836 292,821,012 6,300,625,957 5,748,113,683
Total sales 6,268,561,909 5,455,426,036 32,107,156 292,890,232 6,300,669,065 5,748,316,268

20. Segment information
The Company and its subsidiaries mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic components and mainly carry on their
business in the geographic areas in Thailand, Hong Kong, the United States of America and China. Geographical segment
information of the Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Domestic Foreign Eliminated Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues from external customers 13,090 10,640 3,868 2,818 = = 16,958 13,458

Intersegment revenues 50 195 5,135 3,288 (5,185) (3,483) - -

Total revenues 13,140 10,835 9,003 6,106 (5,185) (3,483) 16,958 13,458

Segment income 2,076 1,949 794 552 2,870 2,501
Unallocated income and expenses:

Other income 495 339

Gain on liquidation of subsidiary company - 29

Gain on exchange 192 139

Selling expenses (121) (159)

Administrative expenses (480) (520)

Management benefit expenses (85) (74)

Other expenses (27) (47)

Finance cost (8) @)

Corporate income tax (87) (158)

Net income for the year 2,749 2,043

(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Domestic Foreign Eliminated Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Property, plant and equipment - net 4,847 4,011 1,679 1,590 = - 6,526 5,601

Other assets 17,607 16,724 16,476 16,511 (23,805) (23,025) 10,278 10,210

Total assets 22,454 20,735 18,155 18,101 (23,805) (23,025) 16,804 15,811

Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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22.

Provident fund
The Company, the subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident

Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company or the subsidiaries contribute to the fund monthly at the rates of 3.0 - 7.5

percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by SCB Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to employees

upon terminating in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2010, total amount of approximately of Baht 42 million (2009:

Baht 40 million) had been contributed to the fund by the Company and its subsidiaries, and Baht 18 million had been contributed

by the Company (2009: Baht 16 million).

Dividend paid

During the year 2010 and 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries had dividend payments as follows:

The Company

For the year 2010
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2010

For the year 2009
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2009

Subsidiary companies
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited

For the year 2010
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2010

For the year 2009
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period from

1 January 2009 to 30 April 2009
Total for the year 2009

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited

For the year 2010
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2010

For the year 2009
Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2009

(Unit: Baht)

Approved by

Total dividends

Dividend per share

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 30 April 2010

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 30 April 2009

1,126,830,404 1.40

1,126,830,404 1.40

981,009,792 1.20

981,009,792 1.20
(Unit: Baht)

Approved by

Total dividends

Dividend per share

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders 30 April 2010

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders 30 April 2009

Board of Director's Meeting on 4 May
2009

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 29 March 2010

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 24 April 2009
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100,000,000 1.00
100,000,000 1.00
100,000,000 1.00
220,000,000 2.20
320,000,000 3.20
300,000,000 2.50
300,000,000 2.50
516,000,000 4.30
516,000,000 4.30
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Excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies

On 30 April 2009, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company No. 16/2009 passed the resolution approving
the offsetting of the excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies amounting to Baht 154,975,555
which the Company had already deducted in the consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2008, against the
unappropriated retained earnings in the consolidated shareholders’ equity. The Company recorded such transaction in the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2010, the Company and its subsidiaries had capital commitments of approximately USD 20 million or equivalent
to Baht 608 million, relating to the acquisitions of machinery (the Company only: Baht 197 million).

Operating lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries operate their business in Bangkok on a leased premise, the lease agreement of which is made
between the landlord and a related company. The lease is for a period as from the year 1986 up to the year 2014 with the annual
lease payment of approximately Baht 0.2 million in the year 1992 and subject to an increase at the rate of 10% per annum.

Marketing supportive service agreement

Since the year 2001, the Company and four subsidiary companies entered into marketing supportive service agreement with an
overseas subsidiary company. Under that agreement, the Company and the four subsidiary companies have to pay service fees
to that subsidiary company at the rates stipulated in the agreement.

Guarantees

As at 31 December 2010, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 191 million (the Company only: Baht
154 million) issued by banks on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain performance bonds as required
in the normal course of business of the Company and the subsidiaries. These included letters of guarantee amounting to Baht
144 million to be security for the tax assessment of a subsidiary company made by the Revenue Department (as discussed in
Note 24.5) and Baht 46 million to guarantee electricity use and Baht 1 million among others.

Tax assessment

During the year 2003, the Company received a notification of a corporate income tax assessment for the year 1997 from the
Revenue Department for not allocating interest expenses and loss on exchange rate of loans to the promoted operations, causing
the under recording of corporate income tax for the year 1997, which together with related penalty and surcharge amounted to
Baht 150 million. The Company did not agree with the assessment and appealed it to the Tax Tribunal. In November 2007, the
Tax Tribunal rejected the appeal. Currently, the Company is in the process of appealing to the Supreme Court and expects that
the Supreme Court will reverse the judgment of the Central Tax Court, which will not result in any tax payment to the Company.

However, the Company has recorded provision for loss on tax assessment of approximately Baht 150 million and has placed a
bank guarantee as security against the assessment.

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, investments, and
trade accounts payable. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described

below.
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Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable. The Company
and its subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore do not expect
to incur material inancial losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables as stated
in the balance sheets.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their cash at banks, bills of exchange and
available-for-sales securities. However, since most of their inancial assets bear floating interest rates, or fixed interest rate which
are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 classified by type of interest rates are summarised in the table
below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the
repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest rate o Non-interest Effective interest
T Floating interest rate el Total -
(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,910 837 227 2,974 0.001-2.25
Short-term investments 1,851 23 161 2,035 1.55-9.75
Trade accounts receivable - - 2,432 2,432 -
Total financial assets 3,761 860 2,820 7,441
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - 1,699 1,699 -
Total financial liabilities - - 1,699 1,699

Separate financial statements

Fixed interest rate o Non-interest Effective interest
T G Floating interest rate . Total i
(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 450 209 4 663 0.25-1.45
Trade accounts receivable - - 1,031 1,031 -
Total financial assets 450 209 1,035 1,694
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - 472 472 -
Total financial liabilities - - 472 472
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Foreign currency risk

The Company'’s and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arise mainly from trading transactions that are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Company and its subsidiaries seek to reduce this risk by entering into forward exchange contracts
when they consider appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts will mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2010 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate as at 31 December 2010
(Million) (Million) (Baht per foreign currency unit)
China Yuan 278 90 4.5582
US Dollar 166 45 30.1513
Indian Rupee 45 - 0.6703
Euro 9 - 39.9394
Japan Yen 4 8 0.3705
Singapore Dollar 2 - 23.3264
Brazilian real 2 = 18.1017
Australia dollar 2 - 30.7226
Pound Sterling 1 - 46.7968

As at at 31 December 2010, an overseas subsidiary company had outstanding forward exchange contracts, of which details are
presented below.

Sold amount Maturity date Contractual exchange rate for amount sold
(Million USD) (Baht per USD)

40 10 March 2011 30.87

10 22 April 2011 29.73
(Million Euro) (USD per Euro)

5 16 May 2011 1.36

In addition, the subsidiary company entered into the linked asset swap agreement with an overseas bank. The details of the swap
agreement outstanding as at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

Linked asset Notional amount Maturity date Yield to maturity Fair value gain (loss)
(Million USD) (Percent) (Million Baht)
Credit default swap - quoted bonds 2 20 June 2013 143 (0.18)

Fair value of financial statements

Since the majority of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in nature and carry floating interest
rate or the interest rate close to market rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented
in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an
appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ capital management is to ensure that they have an appropriate
financial structure and preserve the ability to continue their business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.19:1 (2009: 0.22:1) and the
Company’s was 0.11:1 (2009: 0.14:1).
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27. Subsequent events
On 1 March 2011, the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company No. 1/2011 passed a resolution approving the dividend

payment for the year 2010 to the Company’s shareholders at Baht 1.55 per share. The dividend will be paid on 12 May 2011.
The dividend payment will later be proposed for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.
28. Reclassification

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 have been reclassified to conform to the current
year'’s classification but with no effect to previously reported netincome or shareholders’ equity. The reclassifications are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
As reclassified As previously reported As reclassified As previously reported
Balance sheets
Property, plant and equipment - net 5,600,953,118 5,605,406,696 - -
Intangible assets - net 20,867,964 16,414,386 - -

29. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 1 March 2011.
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